CARRY ME HOME

INTRO

n life we are told that opposite attract.
darkness axist so that we can appriciate
the light. thats why we need to fall inlove
with people who complete us, someone
to travel the road with us. Someone to
pick us up when we fall dawn and carry
us home. Travel with me in this journey
of love and self discovery, where the
past threatens the future.
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can't believe | am standing here today,
outside of this four walls, it sure feels
like a dream. | have dreamed about this



day since the first night | spent in this
hell hole but | did not even once believe
it would come true. “It's all right Phumla,
it's all over now” he says patting my
back. | am down on my knees crying
because | still can't believe that this day
is finally here. | couldnt sleep last night
because | was afraid to wake up and be
told it was all a dream. But | am here
now and | am really free, the rain that
falls on my back reminds me that it all
real and | am not dreaming. | slowly get
up and take in a deep breath. | don't
want to look back so | just walk on, | will
definitely do anything in my power not to
find myself back here again.



My name is Phumlani Zungu | am 30
years old and today marks the day of my
rebirth. Today is the day my life takes a
turn for the better, today is the day |
become a free man. | get into the back
of the car and Simon is looking with
worry and concern in his eyes. “Are you
ohk ndoda?” he ask as he takes a sit
next to me at the back. “Ngi right Sy, and
thank you very much for everything, |
don't think | would have survived my
time here if you also choose to turn you
back on me like everyone else.” He nods
and asks the driver to drive to a hotel. |
asked him to book me into a hotel
because | don't want to go home. In fact,
| doubt | still have a home. Simon,



wanted to take me in but | just did not
want to inconvenience his family, |
understand that he has a young wife
now and | don’t want to make her feel
uncomfortable in her own home. We all
know how people sometimes feel
awkward around former convicts, plus
the guy has already done more for me.
“We are here mfwethu” Sy says. | was
not even aware that we are parked in
front of the hotel. | take a deep breath
“Can you please give me 5 more
minutes?” | ask. “Sho, you will find me
inside when you are ready” he says
walking out after patting my back, the
driver follows and stand outside.



| close my eyes as soon as the car door
closes. | say a prayer thanking the lord
for protecting me all those months in
prison and for affording me a second
chance in life. After the prayer | walk out
of the car and walk into the hotel.

| find Sy waiting for me at the reception.
He walks to the lift and | follow him “
thought you killed yourself in there bro”
he says jokingly. “Never, if it was that
easy | would have done it the first night |
spend in prison” | say walking into the
lift. “Yazi Phumla, | am glad you did not
choose to take the easy way out, | doubt
| would have survived. | respect you
ndoda” he says. “l don't think we know
what we can survive until we find



ourselves in that situation. | mean 4
years ago, | would not have dreamt of
spending a day in jail and surviving
mfwethu, but here I am” | reply
shrugging my shoulders. We reach our
floor and walk to the room.

‘I have a little present for you, | hope you
will like it” Sy says standing by the door.
“As long as it's not a surprise party, |
told you | am not ready to see anyone” |
say pointing my finger at him. He just
shrugs his shoulders and open the door.
“Fuck ndoda, this | like" | say patting him
on the back and smiling. | like what | see
of course, two beautiful half naked
ladies chilling on the bed. You see | have



been starved, Simon tried to find a way
to bring me some while | was still
incarcerated but all attempts failed.
“Well I am glad you approve, coz | have
to leave. | promised my daughter | will
pe attending her soccer match today.
|adies, please make sure my friend here
nas the best time on his life” Sy say.
“Before you leave, when am | getting my
stuff? | need to start working”. “You will
get your toys tomorrow morning, along
with you bank cards.” He says and
pause, he looks at the ladies behind me
and said “Phumla, we will discuss
everything tomorrow ohk. Go get rid of
all that cerebos, | am sure you are ready

to offload 25 liters” he says laughing




and running to the door. Crazy son of a
b***h. | turn my attention to the two
ladies on the bed who are looking at me
seductively and | am as hard as an iron.
Damn, tonight is the night.
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am woken up by a loud banging on the
door. Damn, what time is it. | barely slept
last night. The two ladies were having
trouble keeping up, | made sure they
worked for every penny paid to them. “I
am coming, just stop banging the door
like a prison warder, | did not leave
prison to be woken like an inmate” |
shout removing one of the ladies head
from my chest. Mxm she is too
comfortable, cuddling like we are lovers.



They should wake up and leave already.

“Damn you look like you had a rough
night, | feel for the poor ladies” Simon
says pushing his way in. “What time is it
and aren’t you supposed to be eating
breakfast in bed or something” | ask
yawning. “Its late ndoda, didn't you used
to wake up at 4 am in Alcatraz?” ooooh
really? What would he know about
Alcatraz? the prison | was in was more
like Sun City than Alcatraz as he puts it.
But the special holiday treatment was
not for all of us. | was lucky really
pecause there is nothing money cannot
ouy in this country. Simon woke the
adies up nicely and asked them to leave.




Apparently payment was done via EFT
before they showed up, yah things have
really changed out here. Prostitutes are
paid via EFT, | am told its for safety
reasons, one they don't feel safe carry a
lot of cash, | don't even want to know
how much they were paid, and two
some customers runaway without
paying. That is just not fair. We need to
respect each other's trade, | mean how
would you feel if someone used your
services and refused to pay up after?
Other professionals would threaten legal
action because the law is on their side
while this profession (prostitution) is not
even recognized by the law.



“What time is my stuff getting here?” |
ask. “They should be arriving any time
from now” he says checking his watch.
“Ohk, | need a shower, please order us
some breakfast while you are at it. | am
famished” | say walking to the bathroom.
| take a quick shower and | swear that's
just what the doctor ordered, my body
sure needed this after the rough night |
had.

| walk back to find Simon on the phone. |
assume he is talking to his wife because
he is all soft and humble and he is all
about smiles. Mxm pussy whipped ass. |
search through a bag that he brought
with him and pull out a pair of blue jeans,



blue golf shirt and white snickers. Simon
Knows my taste very well that why | trust
nim to organize things for me. “Mfwethu,
your toys are over there” he says
pointing his finger at a large box next to
the table. The stuff must have arrived
when | was still in the shower. “Wow
finally, now | can start working” | say
with a smile on my face. | open the box
and take out the laptop, cellphone and
some discs that are in the box. | pluck in
the laptop and switch it on. | am busy
installing some software and coding.
You should know that computers are my
specialty. | can easily hack into any
system | want to.i am that good, even if
| say so myself.




“Are you sure you still know what you
are doing?” he asks leaning in behind my
back. “Ungazo ngi jwayela, this is like
riding a bicycle, it doesn't matter how
long you take not riding. Maybe if you
stop breathing down my neck | will
finish here fast” | say without looking at
him. He chuckles and walks away. Wise
move, | can now easily concentrate on
what | am doing. There is a knock on the
door, Sy and | look at each other before
he asks who is it? “Room service sir” a
voice responds on the other side. | shift
my attention back to my computer
screen as Sy opens the door and accept
the breakfast. | am very hungry but | am



in the zone, damn | missed my “toys”. |
am done with installing and coding after
two hours and half, | did not even hear
Simon leave. | must have been really in
the zone, it's a good thing he
understands that once | start working |
become oblivious of my surrounding.

| decide to hack into the cameras
system of the hotel to test it out and boy
it works like wonder. | get up and help
myself to the breakfast, or should | say
what remains of it. Simon can eat the
whole cow should he be given a chance.
“Did you win?” that how he answers his
phone. “Who am |, huh?” “Uyinja ndoda,
you are the man. Let me wrap few



things here, | will see you in an hour” he
says. “Cool” | reply before hanging up. |
decide to leave the place khe ngishaywe
wu moya. | ask the man at reception to
call me a cab and to take me to the mall
to buy some few things before I leave. |
decided that | would be relocating, there
is honestly nothing for me here anymore,
just painful memories that | want to
leave behind. Simon bought me some IT
company in Limpopo that was about to
shut down, | want to rebuild my life far
from this place.

| know you are probably asking yourself
how | ended up in prison and what was |
sentenced for. But that is a story for



another day, all you need to know is that
| did not kill, rape or steal | was just in a
wrong place at a wrong time with the
wrong crowed. | have been here for 40
min and | need to head back to the hotel
before Simon comes back, he did say he
will be there in an hours’ time. | decide
to call him to pass by the mall and pick
me up. “l am on my way mfwethu nguya
fika manje ao” | laugh, this guys has no
phone manners shem. “bengithi
uzongithola ngase Pavillion ao” | say.
“ohk, ngiyafika ke, please order us some
lunch while you are at it” this man
doesn't his wife feed him? “Ku lungile ke,
uzongithola ngase Spur” we say our
goodbyes and hang up. | walk into the



restaurant and order some food for two.
Decided to google Polokwane while |
wait for Sy and the food. | learn some
interesting things about the province, |
really did not know much about it. | just
want to be far from this place.

“bengakwazi ukithi ubuyile, were you not
supposed to spend like 25 years inside?”
| know that voice, she better leave me
alone coz | am not in the mood to deal
with her. See why | need to relocate, my
unpleasant past is everywhere. “Phumla
ngi khuluma nawe” she says. | look up
and | must say, she is still as beautiful
as ever but | bet she is still a heatless,
gold digging whore. “Zinzi, leave me



alone please. It can't be that difficult,
you did it for the past 4 years so move
along” | say looking at her in the eye.
She smirks and rubs her big belly and
walks off, | wonder why Sy never told me
that she is pregnant. Mxm. | take a deep
breath, decides to search for a plan
ticket online. | am leaving as soon as
tomorrow. Simon will have to
understand. The plan was for me to
move, after a week but | can't be in this
place anymore. At least a house has
already been bought for me that side. |
will use the week to sight see before
starting at the company

[05/04, 13:43] :Insert 3

Rorisang



Ora: “mommy mommy tsoga, tsoga”
that's the sound of my little princess
waking me up

Me: “ooooh Ora 5 more minutes please”
| plead with her refusing to open my
eyes.

Ora: “But mommy you promised me
pancakes” she whines as she is jumping
up and down on my bed. There goes my
beauty sleep, | open my eyes and smile
at this beautiful girl who is bossing me
around. | have to apologize to my
mother for all the times | bossed her
around, this must be karma.

Me: “Happy birthday princess Ora,



mommy loves you very much and you
are my little sunshine, you brighten up
my life” | say as | pull her for a warm hug
and kissing her allover her face. She
giggles and my heart jumps for joy.
“Come let’'s wash your face and brush
your teeth before pancakes”. She runs to
the bathroom with me behind her. We do
our business and go to the kitchen to
make pancakes. My phone rings and by
just looking at the caller ID | know the
call is not meant for me but the princess,
| hand her the phone and her face lights
up when she sees the caller ID. She
chooses to laugh and not answer the
phone, | look at her amused and wonder
why she doesn’t want to talk to Thuso.




Me: “why are you ignoring the phone Ora
don’t you want to talk to TS” | ask.

Ora: “No mommy he must wait on the
lady because a lady is not always
available you know” she says with some
attitude | look at her amused. The phone
rings again and this time she answer

Ora: “hello TS".

Thuso: “Happy birthday my lady, how are
you today”? he asks.

Ora: “I am fine but it can be better you
know" she says.

TS: “oooh really, what can | do to make it
better” he says.



Ora: “well you can tell me you are
attending my birthday party later on
today, | miss you TS”.

walk out leaving her on the phone to go
path. Ora and Thuso have the most
peautiful relationship ever, they are very
close and when she was born Thuso
named her Melena (meaning love, grace
and warmth) apparently it originates
from Czech. Thuso is my big brother
and has always played a father role to
my daughter. He has a doctorate in
Linguistic hence the love for foreign
names. He lives in Johannesburg
because of his work at Wits. | also
wonder if he will be coming for Ora’s




party but | wouldn't blame him if he can't.
Gauteng is too far to drive just to attend
a child’s 6th birthday party. We are
having a little celebration at Mike's
Kitchen outside Mall of the North. We
invited about 20 children, Ora’s friends
and cousins of her age group. | walk
back to the kitchen only to find she is
still on the phone with Thuso.

Me: “Ora you need to say bye now so
that we can go get your hair done, Ausi
Keneilwe is waiting for you”. She hands
me the phone and rushes to the
bedroom.

Me: “So uncle T, are you coming”? | ask
my brother.



TS: “of cause | am coming, | wouldn't
miss my princess’s birthday” he says.

Me: “You will make such a great father
watseba mara Thuso”.

TS: He laughs “I don't want kids Rori,
Melena is enough for me”.

Hai you will never win with this one. My
mother has been begging him to bring
home a makoti but he says not anytime
soon. Sometimes | think these
academics just sucks in love coz they
spend most of their times with their
0ooks. Ora and | leave the house to
Keneilwe's house 3 streets away to get
ner hair done. | drop her off and call my




dad to drive me to collect the cake at
Madiba Park.

Few hours later we are off to town and
the princess is sulking because TS is
not here yet and his phone is on
voicemail. My father drops us off and
reminds me to call him an hour before
so that he can pick us up. We walk into
the venue and my Ora jumps up and
down with happiness when she sees the
decoration with the Doc Mcstuffins
theme and Cake. My daughter bathong,
she wants to be a Doctor when she
grows up, not just any doctor “a doctor
who heals animals” as she always says.
Children starts arriving at the venue and
the party begins. | am sitting with my




friend Mpho at the back supervising the
kids. We asked the parents to drop off
the kids and pick them up at 16:30. An
nour into the party Thuso walks in with a
piggest present in his hands, Ora spots
ner uncle and runs to him. | shed a tear
pecause | am grateful for my brother for
always being there for my little princess.
She has never felt that she doesn't have
a father.

My mind wonders off to 9 years ago
when | meet Ora’s father. He was what
we would consider a beautiful black
man, he was well built as he was into
soccer and gym and dark in complexion,
not too dark but acceptable dark. | used



to call him my black coffee. We were
soo in love and | was sure he was my
forever. | meet Thapelo Kgalema when |
was doing my first year at the University
of Johannesburg. It was the 3rd day of
orientation and he was an usher. He
introduced himself at lunch time and
asked why | was sitting alone.

Me: “well | am sort of a loner”

Thapelo: “oooh so am |, how about we
become loners together?” he said with a
beautiful smile.

We sat together until lunch was done
and he offered to walk me to my room
at the end of the day. After orientation



he asked me to wait at least 30 minutes
for him as they only knocked off 30 min
after the programme was done. | waited
and he accompanied me to my room, |
was staying off campus and he was
staying on campus. We became close
friends and later started to date. | was
studying towards Business
administration and he was doing his
second year in education. | really
thought Thapelo was the one, he
promised me heaven and earth but |
guess | was a fool in love because | fell
for all his charm. For the next three
years at varsity | lived my life for him, we
moved in together when | was doing my
second year while making sure that our



parents never finds out. We were both
far from home, he came from Taung in
North West and | came from Seshego in
Limpopo and my parent never policed
me because | was a good straight A
child. | planned my life and future
around Thapelo because | was
convinced he was my forever. Little did |
know that he did not feel the same. We
were still happy in our little bubble 3
years later when | fell pregnant. Thapelo
was doing his fourth year and | was
doing was my 3rd. We were all in our
final year and looking forward to our
future together.

After finding out | was pregnant | rushed



to our little love nest and cooked his
favorite meal. Not that | was happy
being pregnant but abortion was not an
option as it goes against my belief. | am
not a Christian but | wouldn’t want to Kkill
an innocent soil and | thought since
Thapelo and | are deeply in love we
would make it work. Thapelo was busy
with his practicals at a school in Taung
but made sure he would come back
every Friday. | called to check how far he
was and he assured me that he will be
home soon.

After few hours he arrived and | was
done cooking, we ate over a light
conversation with me laughing at the



stories he shared about his students
and other staff members. This was my
safe heaven, eating and laughing with
the love of my life. We made love in the
most passionate way assuring each
other how much we loved one another.
As we were cuddling in bed | pulled the
pregnancy test and handed it over to
Thapelo.

Thapelo: “what is this?" he asked with a
frown on his face.

Me: “it's a preghancy test love, we now
know why | have been sick this past few
weeks”. | looked at him puzzled as he
laughed and shook his head like | was
just joking.




Thapelo: “are you trying to trap me
because | am about to start working?”

What? Why would | want to trap him? |
did not plan to fall pregnant and | am not
sure what he means about me trapping
him. He has always gave me the
impression that we will be together
forever, why would | trap him?

Me: “I am not trying to trap you Thapelo”
| said with tears running down my
cheeks.

Thapelo: “fine then you will not have an
issue terminating that pregnancy,
because | am not ready to be tied down.
| still want to live a little and experience



the world out there. | will take you to a
Dr first thing in the morning” he said and
kissed my forehead.

Me: “I am keeping the baby Thapelo, |
would not kill my child”.

Thapelo: “really now? Ohk fine, be
prepared to do this on your own. Like |
said | am not ready to do this with you
Rorisang” he said and turn to look the
other way.

| cried myself to sleep that night praying
that he would wake up with a change of
heart. | woke up in the morning around 8
and Thapelo was not sleeping next me. |
found an envelope on the table with
R2000 and a note that said | should go
terminate if | still wanted him in my life. |



called him.

Thapelo: “hi Rori, have you decided?”

That's how he answered his phone.
Wow, | am Rori now, not my love or baby
like he always called me. | felt so cheap,
| felt like | haven't known this person for
the past 3 years.

Me: “I decided to keep the baby Thapelo,
| cannot subject by self to an abortion
and | would never forgive myself” | said
in between the sobbing.

Thapelo: “fine then please pack up my
things | will take them on my way to
home, | am sorry we can't make us
work” with that said he hanged the



phone.

What? Is this my Thapelo? What is really
going on here?

He really left and took all his clothes,
just like that a 3 year relationship came
to an end. | cried myself to sleep for the
next 3 weeks with no word from Thapelo,
until | woke up at a hospital. Apparently
my neighbor become worried after not
seeing me for 2 days and asked my
landlord to open up my room. | was
found unconscious and | was rushed to
the hospital. My parents we called and
my dad was very disappointed in me. |
had to drop my studies and move back
home so that my mother can take care
of me as | was depressed. | couldn't



finish my studies that year and chose to
stay home the following year. | gave
birth to a beautiful baby girl in July 2012,
named Oratilwe Melena Mokoena. When
Ora was 4 years old | decided to finish
my outstanding subjects with Unisa,
thanks to Thuso who set me down and
painted a scary picture of what my life
would be without education. | went back
and finished with my qualification. | was
busy with my Internship last year and |
am very happy with my life and my little
angel.

Ora: “mommy look what TS got for me”
she says tapping my shoulder bringing
back from my thought.



Me: “wow Ora this is soo beautiful, now
you can start practicing your skills my
young doctor”

Thuso got her a learning resources
pretend play pet vet hospital set. | smile
at her and then turn to my bother with a
smile.

TS: okare okgole ka me nagano so (why
does it seem like your mind is far) he
says pulling me in for a hug.

Me: “l am just tired it's been a long week
planning this diva's party”

TS: “well everything looks perfect and
she is a very happy child, she makes all
of us happy” he says with a beautiful
smile on his face. There is no way you



can miss the love he has for this child in
his eyes.

We sit and watch the kids enjoy the
party until parent collect their kids one
ny one, then we make our way home. It
nas been a long day really and we are all
just tired. We get home, bath the
princess, take a quick shower and off to
ned.

My name is Rorisang Mokwena and | am
26 years old, | have a 6 year old
daughter, 2 brothers and still lives with
my parents.
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Rorisang



Ora: “mommy mommy tsoga, tsoga”
that's the sound of my little princess
waking me up

Me: “ooooh Ora 5 more minutes please”
| plead with her refusing to open my
eyes.

Ora: “But mommy you promised me
pancakes” she whines as she is jumping
up and down on my bed. There goes my
beauty sleep, | open my eyes and smile
at this beautiful girl who is bossing me
around. | have to apologize to my
mother for all the times | bossed her
around, this must be karma.

Me: “Happy birthday princess Ora,



mommy loves you very much and you
are my little sunshine, you brighten up
my life” | say as | pull her for a warm hug
and kissing her allover her face. She
giggles and my heart jumps for joy.
“Come let’'s wash your face and brush
your teeth before pancakes”. She runs to
the bathroom with me behind her. We do
our business and go to the kitchen to
make pancakes. My phone rings and by
just looking at the caller ID | know the
call is not meant for me but the princess,
| hand her the phone and her face lights
up when she sees the caller ID. She
chooses to laugh and not answer the
phone, | look at her amused and wonder
why she doesn’t want to talk to Thuso.




Me: “why are you ignoring the phone Ora
don’t you want to talk to TS” | ask.

Ora: “No mommy he must wait on the
lady because a lady is not always
available you know” she says with some
attitude | look at her amused. The phone
rings again and this time she answer

Ora: “hello TS".

Thuso: “Happy birthday my lady, how are
you today”? he asks.

Ora: “I am fine but it can be better you
know" she says.

TS: “oooh really, what can | do to make it
better” he says.



Ora: “well you can tell me you are
attending my birthday party later on
today, | miss you TS”.

walk out leaving her on the phone to go
path. Ora and Thuso have the most
peautiful relationship ever, they are very
close and when she was born Thuso
named her Melena (meaning love, grace
and warmth) apparently it originates
from Czech. Thuso is my big brother
and has always played a father role to
my daughter. He has a doctorate in
Linguistic hence the love for foreign
names. He lives in Johannesburg
because of his work at Wits. | also
wonder if he will be coming for Ora’s




party but | wouldn't blame him if he can't.
Gauteng is too far to drive just to attend
a child’s 6th birthday party. We are
having a little celebration at Mike's
Kitchen outside Mall of the North. We
invited about 20 children, Ora’s friends
and cousins of her age group. | walk
back to the kitchen only to find she is
still on the phone with Thuso.

Me: “Ora you need to say bye now so
that we can go get your hair done, Ausi
Keneilwe is waiting for you”. She hands
me the phone and rushes to the
bedroom.

Me: “So uncle T, are you coming”? | ask
my brother.



TS: “of cause | am coming, | wouldn't
miss my princess’s birthday” he says.

Me: “You will make such a great father
watseba mara Thuso”.

TS: He laughs “I don't want kids Rori,
Melena is enough for me”.

Hai you will never win with this one. My
mother has been begging him to bring
home a makoti but he says not anytime
soon. Sometimes | think these
academics just sucks in love coz they
spend most of their times with their
0ooks. Ora and | leave the house to
Keneilwe's house 3 streets away to get
ner hair done. | drop her off and call my




dad to drive me to collect the cake at
Madiba Park.

Few hours later we are off to town and
the princess is sulking because TS is
not here yet and his phone is on
voicemail. My father drops us off and
reminds me to call him an hour before
so that he can pick us up. We walk into
the venue and my Ora jumps up and
down with happiness when she sees the
decoration with the Doc Mcstuffins
theme and Cake. My daughter bathong,
she wants to be a Doctor when she
grows up, not just any doctor “a doctor
who heals animals” as she always says.
Children starts arriving at the venue and
the party begins. | am sitting with my




friend Mpho at the back supervising the
kids. We asked the parents to drop off
the kids and pick them up at 16:30. An
nour into the party Thuso walks in with a
piggest present in his hands, Ora spots
ner uncle and runs to him. | shed a tear
pecause | am grateful for my brother for
always being there for my little princess.
She has never felt that she doesn't have
a father.

My mind wonders off to 9 years ago
when | meet Ora’s father. He was what
we would consider a beautiful black
man, he was well built as he was into
soccer and gym and dark in complexion,
not too dark but acceptable dark. | used



to call him my black coffee. We were
soo in love and | was sure he was my
forever. | meet Thapelo Kgalema when |
was doing my first year at the University
of Johannesburg. It was the 3rd day of
orientation and he was an usher. He
introduced himself at lunch time and
asked why | was sitting alone.

Me: “well | am sort of a loner”

Thapelo: “oooh so am |, how about we
become loners together?” he said with a
beautiful smile.

We sat together until lunch was done
and he offered to walk me to my room
at the end of the day. After orientation



he asked me to wait at least 30 minutes
for him as they only knocked off 30 min
after the programme was done. | waited
and he accompanied me to my room, |
was staying off campus and he was
staying on campus. We became close
friends and later started to date. | was
studying towards Business
administration and he was doing his
second year in education. | really
thought Thapelo was the one, he
promised me heaven and earth but |
guess | was a fool in love because | fell
for all his charm. For the next three
years at varsity | lived my life for him, we
moved in together when | was doing my
second year while making sure that our



parents never finds out. We were both
far from home, he came from Taung in
North West and | came from Seshego in
Limpopo and my parent never policed
me because | was a good straight A
child. | planned my life and future
around Thapelo because | was
convinced he was my forever. Little did |
know that he did not feel the same. We
were still happy in our little bubble 3
years later when | fell pregnant. Thapelo
was doing his fourth year and | was
doing was my 3rd. We were all in our
final year and looking forward to our
future together.

After finding out | was pregnant | rushed



to our little love nest and cooked his
favorite meal. Not that | was happy
being pregnant but abortion was not an
option as it goes against my belief. | am
not a Christian but | wouldn’t want to Kkill
an innocent soil and | thought since
Thapelo and | are deeply in love we
would make it work. Thapelo was busy
with his practicals at a school in Taung
but made sure he would come back
every Friday. | called to check how far he
was and he assured me that he will be
home soon.

After few hours he arrived and | was
done cooking, we ate over a light
conversation with me laughing at the



stories he shared about his students
and other staff members. This was my
safe heaven, eating and laughing with
the love of my life. We made love in the
most passionate way assuring each
other how much we loved one another.
As we were cuddling in bed | pulled the
pregnancy test and handed it over to
Thapelo.

Thapelo: “what is this?" he asked with a
frown on his face.

Me: “it's a preghancy test love, we now
know why | have been sick this past few
weeks”. | looked at him puzzled as he
laughed and shook his head like | was
just joking.




Thapelo: “are you trying to trap me
because | am about to start working?”

What? Why would | want to trap him? |
did not plan to fall pregnant and | am not
sure what he means about me trapping
him. He has always gave me the
impression that we will be together
forever, why would | trap him?

Me: “I am not trying to trap you Thapelo”
| said with tears running down my
cheeks.

Thapelo: “fine then you will not have an
issue terminating that pregnancy,
because | am not ready to be tied down.
| still want to live a little and experience



the world out there. | will take you to a
Dr first thing in the morning” he said and
kissed my forehead.

Me: “I am keeping the baby Thapelo, |
would not kill my child”.

Thapelo: “really now? Ohk fine, be
prepared to do this on your own. Like |
said | am not ready to do this with you
Rorisang” he said and turn to look the
other way.

| cried myself to sleep that night praying
that he would wake up with a change of
heart. | woke up in the morning around 8
and Thapelo was not sleeping next me. |
found an envelope on the table with
R2000 and a note that said | should go
terminate if | still wanted him in my life. |



called him.

Thapelo: “hi Rori, have you decided?”

That's how he answered his phone.
Wow, | am Rori now, not my love or baby
like he always called me. | felt so cheap,
| felt like | haven't known this person for
the past 3 years.

Me: “I decided to keep the baby Thapelo,
| cannot subject by self to an abortion
and | would never forgive myself” | said
in between the sobbing.

Thapelo: “fine then please pack up my
things | will take them on my way to
home, | am sorry we can't make us
work” with that said he hanged the



phone.

What? Is this my Thapelo? What is really
going on here?

He really left and took all his clothes,
just like that a 3 year relationship came
to an end. | cried myself to sleep for the
next 3 weeks with no word from Thapelo,
until | woke up at a hospital. Apparently
my neighbor become worried after not
seeing me for 2 days and asked my
landlord to open up my room. | was
found unconscious and | was rushed to
the hospital. My parents we called and
my dad was very disappointed in me. |
had to drop my studies and move back
home so that my mother can take care
of me as | was depressed. | couldn't



finish my studies that year and chose to
stay home the following year. | gave
birth to a beautiful baby girl in July 2012,
named Oratilwe Melena Mokoena. When
Ora was 4 years old | decided to finish
my outstanding subjects with Unisa,
thanks to Thuso who set me down and
painted a scary picture of what my life
would be without education. | went back
and finished with my qualification. | was
busy with my Internship last year and |
am very happy with my life and my little
angel.

Ora: “mommy look what TS got for me”
she says tapping my shoulder bringing
back from my thought.



Me: “wow Ora this is soo beautiful, now
you can start practicing your skills my
young doctor”

Thuso got her a learning resources
pretend play pet vet hospital set. | smile
at her and then turn to my bother with a
smile.

TS: okare okgole ka me nagano so (why
does it seem like your mind is far) he
says pulling me in for a hug.

Me: “l am just tired it's been a long week
planning this diva's party”

TS: “well everything looks perfect and
she is a very happy child, she makes all
of us happy” he says with a beautiful
smile on his face. There is no way you



can miss the love he has for this child in
his eyes.

We sit and watch the kids enjoy the
party until parent collect their kids one
ny one, then we make our way home. It
nas been a long day really and we are all
just tired. We get home, bath the
princess, take a quick shower and off to
ned.

My name is Rorisang Mokwena and | am
26 years old, | have a 6 year old
daughter, 2 brothers and still lives with
my parents.

[05/04,13:44] :Insert4



It's been a week since Ora’s birthday
party and today | am starting a new
chapter in my life. It's Monday the 1st of
August and | am starting my first day at
work. It really has not been easy for me
getting here. My life plans and goals
changed after Ora was conceived but |
have no regrets really. | cannot imagine
my life without her, she is my life and |
live for her.

Me: “Nana, tsoga, you have to get ready
for school”

Ora: “aowa mommy, | don't want to go
to school today please its cold” the
drama queen cries out.



Me: “you have to go to school Ora, don't
you want to be a Dr like TS” | say pulling
off the blanket.

Ora: she giggle “no mommy TS is not a
real Dr. He just has the tittle but he
cannot heal anyone”. Smarty pants Mxm.

ME: “ohk how will you heal animals if
you don't want to go to school?”

Ora: “ohk mommy, | will go to school”.

We walk to the bathroom and take a
bath and get dressed in our room. | pack
a lunch box for both of us, the parents
are on a holiday, it must be nice owning
a business watseba. | accompany Ora
to the gate to wait for her transport and |
take a taxi to town.



| get to work and | am welcomed warmly
and | already feel at home, | make
friends with Thalitha and Tebogo.
Tebogo has been here for 2 years now
and Thalitha is her first day as well but
she is in the communication division.
We make our way to library gardens for
lunch after the two ladies convinced me
to abandon my lunch box because we
need to celebrate our entrance into the
working space, mxm pushovers. They
seem like nice ladies and | enjoy their
company.

Thalitha: “Rori do you know that guy in a
navy blue suite?” she ask pointing her



middle finger at me

Tebogo and | look over to see who she
is talking about.

Me: No, | don’t, why do you ask?

Thali: well u brother has been eying you
since we set here.

Tebogo: “are you sure he has been
staring at her?”

Thali: “kere since we walk in here”

Me: “you must be mistaken, | am sure he
is not eying me, coz | have never seen
him before in my life”

Tebogo: “Hai, Thali, how can you tell he
is looking at her since he is looking at
our direction he could be looking at any



of us you know”

Yoo hai the brother has really been
staring at me and that makes me
uncomfortable, | wonder if he thinks he
knows me from somewhere. Well, |
choose to ignore him and continue
talking and laughing with Thalitha and
Tebogo, these two are really funny and |
enjoy their company. We walk back to
the office at exactly 13:50 and | bury
myself in work. Being a new employee is
really not easy especially in our division
because you must know the company in
and out and familiarize yourself with all
that's need to be known about the
business. How else would you be a good




business analyst if you are lacking
knowledge of the business itself?

Thali: “Mogirl, nna | am off now, | will
see you tomorrow neh”

Me: | look at the time and realize its
16:30 already and | start parking my
thing “ohk Thali, safe trip”

Thali: “don’t you want me to drop you off
at the Taxi rank?”

Me: “no thank you, | want to pass by the
store to get few things, maybe next
time”

Thali: “ohk bye, more is nog a dag
(tomorrow)”



| say my good byes and make my way
to the Shoprite for few things and then
to the taxis. | arrive home and find my
bundle of joy playing Dr with her vet
hospital set from Thuso. | stand by the
door looking at her and smiling to
myself. | can't imagine my life without
her really.

Ora: “hi mommy how was your first day
at work? Did you make new friends? And
do you have a big office like TS?" she
says with too much excitement

Me: “my day was good princess, | just
missed you. | did make new friend but
my office is not big at all, come give
mommy a hug”



She comes running and | pick her up and
kiss her and hold on to her for a tight
hug.

Ora: “ooooo mommy that'’s too tight, |
can't breathe.”

Me: “sorry baby, where is aunt sophy”
Ora: “She is at the back feeding Papa’s
dogs”

Me: “Papa’s dogs, | thought they were
your dogs?” | ask a little confused

Ora: “I disowned them mommy, because
they tore my favorite shoes, | loved
those shoes mommy | really did”

Me: “oooh | didn’t know” | say this
shaking my head walking to my
bedroom.



My Ora can really be dramatic shem.
She has this strong loves for animals |
don’t even understand where it comes
from. When she was 5 she cried for my
dad to buy her puppies and promised to
look after them, just because he can't
say no to her, she got her puppies. My
dad spoils Ora rotten, she gets
everything that she wants. She calls my
dad Papa and calls my mother mama
while | am mommy. | walk to the back to
let Aunt Sophy know that | am back and
she can leave. She is our house
executive and has been working for my
parents for as long as | can remember.
She is more of a family than a helper.



Ora: mommy can | please borrow your
phone?

Me: why baby?

Ora: | want to call TP, it's his birthday
today

Ooooh flip | forgot my own little
brother’s birthday and | am reminded by
a 6 year old. | take out my phone n video
call Tshepang.

TP: finally my only sister and niece calls
He says with a smile

Ora: happy birth malome (she says
blowing kisses at him)

Me: happy birthday little bro



TP: My gift hasn't arrived yet, | take it
will be as late as the call that | am
getting, | know Cape Town is far so |
take its still on its way

Yoo now | see where Ora gets her
dramatics from, aowa banna Tshepang.

Ora: Giggling “I drew a beautiful card for
you and placed it in your room TP”

TP: thank you my princess | know you
would never disappoint.

Me: | will transfer you money bby bro
and you can buy whatever you want for
yourself neh?

TP: well you are working now so please
make those zeros worth my while.

Me: | will see what | can do. So how are



you celebrating?

TP: nothing interesting going to dinner
with your mom and dad. You know the
whole idea of studying so far from home
was to get away from them, but here
they are.

We laugh and continue talking to
Tshepang for a while.

Tshepang is my little brother and he is
doing his first year at UCT. My parents
only have 3 kids, Thuso being a first
born, me being a second born and
Tshepang the last. After the call | walk
to the bathroom to pour water for the
princess to bath while | cook. | asked



aunt Sophy not to cook for us since my
parents are away and she can knock off
early. We eat dinner while Ora talks
about her teacher and friends as school.
Then we are off to bed.

*xxxxkksomething for the night
*kkkkkkkkk
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Phumlani

| am sitting here at Nandos having lunch
with my team trying to get to know each
other sort of thing, | notice this beautiful
lady sitting with her friends. They are

talking and don’t even notice me looking,



yoo her smile ne. | can't help but stare.
She captivate my heart instantly and |
want to get to know her. She is neither
light nor dark in complexion. She looks
like she is in her mid-twenties, tiny waist
and carves to die for. She had no
makeup but still looked beautiful with
her flawless skin. She has small lips that
forms a beautiful shape when she
smiles. She had thick long dreadlocks
that she tied at the back. She looks so
perfect with her natural look, a real Pedi
queen | must say. | wonder if she is as
innocent as she looks, mmmmm | would
like to explore every inch of her. | close
my eyes and try to imagine her in my
arms, the things | would do to her and



the sound she would make screaming
my hame.

Kwena: “Zungu?”

Me: “mmmm?”

Kwena: “what do you think?”
Me: “about what?”

The rest of the team laughs

Puseletso: “we were thinking that maybe
we can get a raise”

Me: “why would we do that? The
company was on the verge of closing
down and we are only trying to build it
up and you people already want a raise”



They all laugh at me, kante what did |
miss?

Kwena: “she is pulling your leg, we are
suggesting that we call it a day so the
tomorrow we can come back fresh”

Me: “| don't see a problem with that.
Thank you very much guys | hope you
and | will work well together, because |
want to take this company to greater
heights and if we all put in the work we
will all share in the piece of the pie.”

They all clap their hands and | look over
at the table she was sitting and they had
left. Mxm, | wonder if | will see her again,
can God please make it sooner. We call
for the waiter to bring the bill so that we
can leave.



Kwena: “you can leave guys lunch was
on me, so | will pay when the bill gets
here”

They laugh as they standing up, | am
just shaking my head coz we all know
that he is using the business credit card
to pay off the bill not his own money.
Kwena is my business partner, he is the
founder of the IT Company Sy and |
bought into. Apparently the company
was doing great until his accounted
robbed him close to 80% of the funds in
the business account.

Kwena: “so Zungu where is your mind
off”



Me: “what do you mean” | say smiling
and shaking my head.

Kwena: “it’s like you were day dreaming
few minutes ago bro, you did not even
hear what we were saying”

Me: “I am sorry about that man, | don't
know what happened”

Kwena: “as long as you say you are ohk
man, so where to from here?”

Me: “I will go to the office to collect few
files and go home”

Kwena: “hai you should stop taking files
home and over working yourself? Gape
you make me look like a bad partner

n

YOO



Me: “Bona | really don't mind, go home
early today and spend time with your
family. Some of us are married to our
jobs” | say that laughing.

Kwena: “maybe my wife should set you
up with one of her friends”

Me: “no thank you bro ngi right” | say
getting up.

We walked to the office, as soon as we
arrive | went inside to collect some files
while Kwena goes straight to the
parking lot to collect his car. | was just
standing by the window looking outside
when | saw her again. She was walking
out of an office building opposite ours
with some guy. They were laughing and
he was just too friendly with her, | just



felt a bit jealous looking at their
interaction. | smiled when he got into his
car and she walk off, | wonder where
she parked or maybe if she is walking to
a boyfriend waiting for her somewhere. |
really hope not. | pack my stuff and walk
to the parking lot, get into my car and
drive to my lonely house. | walk to the
study thinking about my Pedi queen, my
soul mate. | think love at first sight just
dealt me a number.

(The following day)

Last night was just really bad; | couldn't
even sleep. My mind was all over the
place and nothing | did to make me
sleep worked. | even tried drinking



chamomile tea | bought while doing
some groceries coz | had trouble
sleeping the first week | moved here so |
thought it would help. Mxm my ex Zinzi
always claimed it made her fall asleep
as she was having insomnia due to the
fact that she was pregnant, only to find
out she was lying. | really loved her, but
a week after my sentencing she came
up to me and told me it is over between
us and she was never pregnant. | was
heartbroken really. Good thing we were
separated by bars, | would have killed
her in a heartbeat. Enough about my sad
song let me take a quick shower before |
get late for work plus | have an early
appointment.




kkkkkkkkkkkkkk

As | cross the robot next to our office
and my eyes wonder around because |
can't help to think about the lady | saw
yesterday. But the only person | see is
the girl she was with yesterday. | quickly
turn my face to the security officer at
our offices as | could see she was
glancing right back at me. F**k what if
she thinks that | was looking at her
yesterday? Anyway | park my car and
walk into the office | smile as | greet the
staff and walk straight into my office. |
need to prepare for meeting that | have
with a college that needs us to design a
program for them where Lecturers can



interact with students and uploads
notes and students can log on to submit
assignments. This is one contract we
really hope to get. It could be what we
need to get this company back on the
map. My phone rings as | am about to
go to call Kwena so that we can leave
for the meeting.

Me: “Sy, ndoda ya madoda”

Sy: “Eeee Morwa antshe mapjatla mo
Limpopo?” he says with a funny accent.

Me: “Sy, ungazo ng'thuka uyezwa”

Sy: laughing “Hai Phumla you must start
learning Sepedi man, uzodla njani
abantwana ninga zwani nge nkulumo?



You have been there for 2 weeks already,
ever heard of STL? You need to try it”

Me: “STL? | don't even want to know
ukuthi yini leyo.........."

Kwena walks into my office hitting his
wrist with a finger indicating time is not
on our side.

Me: “I have to go Sy, sezokhuluma later”

Sy: “Gulukile ge, call me when you get
home later. By the way STL is sexually
transmitted languages” he say before
hanging up. | can’t help but laugh, u Sy
uyagula straight.

Kwena: “we need to leave now if we
want to make it in time”

Me: “I am ready, let's go” | say packing



my laptop and some files into a case.
[05/04, 13:44] :Insert6
Rorisang

It has been 2 weeks since | have been at
my new job and | am loving every
moment. The only challenge | have is
this supervisor of mine who can't take
no for an answer. The guy have been
persuading me since my first day here
and really | am not interested. | have not
been with anyone since Thapelo so |
won't get back into the game with a co-
worker, | really don't need a man to
complicate my work life worse of all my
boss. | have been stress free for the last
6 years and | am not about to let my




guard down now. He must just give up
before he makes my time here
uncomfortable.

The parents are back from the Holiday
and | am happy about that because |
don’t have to deal with Ora’s drama in
the mornings, my mother helps her to
bath and dress up for school every day. |
walk in the kitchen and find Ora eating
brown soft porridge just the way we
both like it, with a dash of vinegar.

Me: “good morning princess, where is
Mama and Papa” | lean over for a kiss
on the forehead.

Ora: “morning mommy, they are in the



sitting room, Papa said he want to
watch news”

Me: “Ohk, please finish up, | will walk you
to the gate”

Ora: “mommy | can't take this bread for
skhaftin”

Me: “Bothata?”

Ora: “ba expire today ka 08:30 and nna
lunch yaka eka 12:30. So tlabe bo bodile
ka lunch”

Huh?, Yoo hai this child is too much,
see what | mean about being dramatic. |
give up. | am not even going to entertain
her. | walk away from her and walk to
the sitting room to great the parent. |



find them sitting on a two sitter couch,
with my mother resting her head on my
father’'s chest, him having his arms
wrapped around her. After 35 years they
are still so in love, forget about Romeo
and Juliet, Samson and Delilah this right
here is true love and their story deserves
a book. Too bad not all of us are meant
to be find our true love. Since Christians
believe that a woman was created from
a man'’s rib and therefore we all have our
soul mates, | believe mine is in prison
somewhere serving a life sentence.

Me: “Thobela mama le papa (greetings
mom and dad)” | say with a smile

Them: Agee (greetings)



Me: “anything you need from town today,
Ora and | are about to leave”

Dad: “Don't worry, | will be taking your
mother to town today so we will get
everything. What time do you knock off
so that we can wait for you?”

Me: “I knock off at 16:30, but | am going
to the movies with Thalitha no need to
wait for me”

Mom: “movies on Tuesday? Why not on
Friday when you are not going to work
the following day?”

Me: “because its half price on Tuesday
mother and on Fridays Thalita normally
travels home”

Mom: “ohk, enjoy you day, Ora come



give me kiss” she calls out. Ora comes
sulking, | guess this is because of the
bread issue.

Dad: “What is wrong princess?”

Ora: running to him and throwing herself
in his arms “"Mommy onyaka keje dijo
tsago bola”

What the hell? this child. My parents
gives me a questioning look. | guess
they want me to explain. | really don't
have time for this. This child is too
spoiled man nx. | just shake my head
and walk away. | guess the
grandparents will walk her to the gate
for transport.



The taxi ride to work is short and sweet
as always we are listening to the sound
of the fresh breakfast show on Metro fm.
| get to work and great the security lady
at the gate. Hai she is full of smiles
today.

Me: “Thobela Mmane” (greeting aunty)

Her: “Agee Rorisang, kena le parcela ya
gago mo” (greetings Rori | have your
parcel here)

What parcel is she talking about?
Me: “ke eng?” (What is it?)

Her: “Aretse, tseya otla te ponela yona”
(I don’t know take you will see for
yourself). She hands me an envelope.
Ohk who would drop this with the



security and not reception?
Me: “Estwa go mang?” (Who is it from?)

Her: “go abuti yo mongwe ka mo next
door” she says pointing at a building
opposite ours with big letters written MK
IT solutions.

Me: “ke a leboga (Thank you)” | say
walking off to the office

Ohk | have never noticed that IT
solutions sign before today and why
would | receive letters from them?

Alex: “Morning to you too Rori” my
annoying supervisor

Me: “good morning sir, | am sorry | did
not see you there”



Alex: “are you ohk?”

Me: “yes | am thanks for asking sir” | say
moving to my office, | need to sit down
and read the contents of whatever it is
in this envelope. My phone rings as |
walk into the office.

Me: “Rosirang Mokoena speaking hello”

Caller: laughing “Chesa wena girl, phone
adequate ereng mo ngwaneng?’

Me: “good morning to you too Tebogo,
what can | do for you?”

Tebogo: “| wanted to check if we are still
on for the movies later on?”

Me: “yes we are still on, Thalitha said we
are catching a 16:50 movie”



Tebogo: “Ohk nanas, let me get on with
my work | have a deadline”

Me: “ohk xap, see you later”

| sit down and take a deep breath before
opening the envelope. | frown when |
see what the content of what is in the
envelope. It's a lunch invite from
someone called Phumlani accompanied
by a spa voucher. God knows | need the
spa treatment but since | don't know the
nigger and | am not about to go on a
lunch date with him. Ladies are getting
kidnapped and killed all over the country
and this stranger wants we to go out to
lunch with him, mxm. | throw the invite
in the bin without the spa voucher



obviously, and start with what | am paid
to do. | am buried in my work when |

knock comes through, Thalitha walks in
and throw herself on a chair next to my
table. | can tell she had a really busy day.

Thali: “I want to order lunch, anything
specific that you want?”

| look at my watch and its 12:45 already,
where did the time fly to.

Me: “no thank you, | have a lunch box
dear if the bread is not stale since
according to my daughter the expiry
date and time is today at 8:30 in the
morning ”

Thali: *hhhh?”



Me: “I know right? | did not understand it
either. | wonder who taught her to check
the expiry date” | say before narrating
the events of this morning. She is
laughing so hard she is even crying. |

Thali: “ohk let me order kfc are you sure
you will be fine with your rotten bread”
she says laughing.

| will not answer that mxm, she thinks
she is funny.

My landline rings before she can use it
to call KFC to place an order

Me: “Hello”

Caller: “Good day miss Mokoena, | am
still waiting for your reply regarding



lunch”
Me: “Sorry, who am | talking to?”

Caller: “no Phumlani, please tell me you
received my invite from the security at
the gate”

Me: “ooh that invite, | received it but in
will not be joining you sir”

Phumlani: “oooh can | ask why not?”

Me: “not that | owe you any explanation
but | don’t go out with strangers”

Thalita is busy looking at me with
curious eyes and raised eyebrows.

Phumlani: “Aouch you wound me, what
can | do to make sure that we move
beyond being strangers” he sounds



dramatic shem.
Me: “nothing really sir”

Phumlani: “ohk if Mohamed cannot go
to the mountain, the mountain will have
to come to Mohamed, any preference?”
whatever that means

Me: “abuti bona, | said | am not
interested”

Phumlani: “Miss Mokoena | did not get
to be where | am by taking no as an
answer at first response. | will see you in
few minutes”

Mxm, | hang off the phone and shake
my head.



Thali: “now?”

Me: “some guy invited me for lunch and
he doesn’t want to take no for answer”

Thali: “ooow thata wena girl, is he at
least hot?”

Me: “that’s the thing | don’t even know
him, | don't know what he looks like, he
just left an invite with a spa voucher with
the security lady. Apparently he works at
the IT solutions next door”

Thali: “mmmm brothers omo techno
savvy”

Me: “Mxm, | don’t have time to entertain
him. Are you still ordering food?”

Thali: “Hai its late let walk to the
cafeteria and see what | can get there.



Grab your expired lunch box and we will
sit at cafeteria and eat there”

Me: “ha ha ha, very funny” | say
sarcastically.

She is actually laughing. | will regret
telling her about Ora’s drama today. |
won't hear the end of it. | switched off
my laptop and we take a walk to the
cafeteria with Thalitha making jokes
about my “stale” bread.

[05/04, 13:44] :Insert?7

| really did not expect her to easily agree
to a lunch date with me so | have to put

my plan B in motion. | pick up my phone
and call my Assistant.



Sindy: “Mr Zungu”

Me: “Sindy can you please let me know
as soon as my food arrives”

Sindy: “ohk sir | will let you

know......... oooh the delivery guy just
walked in, should | send him through to
your office?”

Me: “no, | am coming”

| switch off my laptop, take my wallet
and make my way out of the office

Me: “good day my brother, How much do
| owe you?”

Delivery guy: “just 259 sir”

give the guy 300, thanked him and told
nim to keep the change.




Me: “Sindy please let Kwena know that |
will be out of the Office, | won't be
having lunch with him today but I will be
back in time for the conference call with
the Germans”

Sindy: “ohk sir, enjoy your lunch”

Me: “You too Sindy”

walk out and walk across the street to
nave lunch with my Pedi queen who
Knows maybe soon she will be a Mrs
Zungu. | smile at that thought of her
being my wife. | great the security lady
with the smile and walk into the building.
| notice one of the ladies she was sitting
with the other day at Nandos and decide




to walk to her. She sees me approaching
and flashes me a smile. | smile back and
greet her.

Me: “Hi, can you please help me, | am
looking for Ms Mokeana”

Her: “Hi, she is at the cafeteria | was on
my way to join her, you can follow me”

| follow her to the cafeteria and | see her
seating at a corner table with another
lady.

Her: “Rori you have a visitor”
She looks over and frowns

Me: “good day ladies, may | join you for
lunch | bring food”



Her seated friend: “Since you bring food
you feel free to join us”

Rori: “who did you say is here to see
me?” she says looking at the friend that |
walked in with

Me: “Well Miss Mokoena the mountain
decided to come to Mohamed” | said
taking a seat close to her. She looked at
me like she wasn't pleased. | guess she
is not going to make things any easier
for me.

Her friend: “My name is Tebogo and this
is Thalitha, | take it you know Rorisang.
What did you say your name was again



sir? | have never seen you around before
recently”

Me: “ooh forgive my manners ladies, my
name is Phumlani Zungu” turning to
look at Rori “Miss Mokoena | hope after
this lunch | will no longer be regarded as
a stranger”

She just nod her head and continued
eating form her lunch box, her friends
did not waste time but decided to dig
into the food that | brought luckily it was
more than enough for two. | brought full
chicken, 4 rolls and 2 large packets of
chips from Nandos and a 2 litre orange
fruit juice. We had lunch over 21
questions from her friends, eish my Pedi




queen wasn't much of a talker. | don't
know if that is who she is or | made her
uncomfortable. | was really hoping for
some privacy with her but her friends
were not giving us a chance. | looked at
the time and it was 13:45 and | had a
conference call at 14:05 otherwise |
would stay longer.

Me: “So Miss Mokoena when can | take
you out for a proper lunch like | offered?”

Rori: “Eeh Mr....... what did you say your
name was again?”

Me: “Phumlani, Phumlani Zungu”

Her: “you asked for lunch sir, | refused
and you forced one on me, so | don't see



why you should take me to lunch again”

Tebogo: “Well | am free to join you any
day Phumlani, plus | want you to teach
me Setsulu”

damn is she being serious right now,
firstly | don't want to have lunch with her,
secondly its IsiZulu not Setsulu, | just
smiled at her coz | cannot afford to be
rude right now.

Thalitha: “Tebogo the invitation was for
Rori, not for any of us dear, it's bad
enough we eat food that was not meant
for us, now you want to invite yourself to
lunch. Aowa chomi”



All this time | am looking at my Pedi
gueen who seems not to be interested
in the conversation or my invitation. |
must say, | was really hurt but | am not
about to give up on her that easily. The
heart wants what the heart wants.

Me: “thanks for the company ladies |
nave to get back to work now before my
poss comes down on me like a ton of
oricks, enjoy the rest of your day” | say
this standing up, | look at Rorisang and
say “Miss Mokoena | will call you later,
uhlale umuhle yezwa" | say winking at
her and she just nods. Really a nod?
That's all | get.

Her friends: “bye Phumlani”



| must say things didn’t go the way |
hoped but | am not about to give up. |
will keep trying until she lets mein.

| walk into the office and collect my files
that | need for the conference call and
head to the boardroom.

Kwena: “Morena, osetse otseba batho
ga osaja lenna lunch”

Mmmmm? The only word | got there
was lunch. Plus he spoke so fast
forgetting that Sepedi is Greek to me

Me: “Yebo | lunch be yimndadi ka khulu”
he looks at me and laughs, ye ye laugh
at me mxm.



Kwena: “Hai, you must really learn
Sepedi fast, are you ready”

Me: “I am, wena?”

Kwena: “lenna ke ready”

We skype the Germans and start talking
Dusiness.
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Rorisang

am seating in my office after lunch
failing to concentrate on my work, | don't
want to be thinking about him but | can't
help myself. | bite my lower lip, close my
eyes and breathe in as | think about his
scent. Oooh God, He smelled so good



and masculine, | found myself drawn to
his scent during lunch. | wanted to bury
myself in his strong arms and deeply
inhale his cologne. What is going on
with me really, | have never been
interested in man since Thapelo. Why
does Phumlani have such an effect on
me?

You see, Phumlani is well built, you can
tell he knows his way around the gym.
He is tall, darkish in complexation with
thick bushy eyebrows and thick lips, |
can almost taste how juicy they look. He
cleans up real good too. He rocked a
chiskop, trimmed mustache and beard.
He reminds me of Fezile Makhanya.




When he smiled, | couldn’ help but
notice his perfect white teeth and
dimples. | open my eyes and shake my
head as if | am trying to shake off the
thoughts in my mind. | breathe out and
try to concentrate on my work. My office
line rings and the lady from reception
tells me | have a delivery, | ask if she can
sign for it in bring it to my office, of
which she oblige.

Few minutes later she walks into my
office holding a bunch of white flowers,
a type | have never seen before. She
smiles and hands them over to me with
a card. | smile back and thank her for
bringing them to my office because she



did not have to. | put them on my table,
it's a good thing they came with a vase
because | wouldn't know where to put
them since | don't own one.

| open the card and | smile as | read
form it “l am a simple man who doesn't
waste time on meaningless things,
everything | invest my time on has to
align to the grand plan. The flowers |
sent | called Gardenia, they symbolize
the purity and sweetness | see in you
every time | look at you. | hope they
make you aware of the secrete love that
| have for you (not that | want it to be
secrete anymore). When you look at
them | hope they convey joy that | want



to bring in your life and always remind
you how lovely | think you are. Mma
Mokoena please give me a chance to
get to know you and allow yourself to
get to know me. If you don't like what
you see after 3 dates | will set you free.
Love P. Zungu”

| read the note again, my heart and mind
are in conflict. | have been hurt before
and | am now used to the walls | have
built around my heart. What if he hurts
me? Am | strong enough to deal with
another breakup? Yooo Thapelo really
broke my heart. Am | willing to be single
for life though? Don't | deserve some
happiness? Like he said, if | don't like




what | see in him after 3 dates | can
simply walk off. My phone rings
shapping me out of my thoughts.

Caller: “I hope you are wrapping up dear,
we leave the office at exactly 16:30"

| look at the time and notice its 16:00

Me: “I will be ready to leave by then
dear”

Thalitha: “ohk dear let me leave you to
i_t"

| hang up and decide to call my mother, |
want to talk to my princess. | feel guilty
that | will get home after she is done
with her homework and evening bath.
My mother doesn't answer her phone



and | call my dad.

Dad: “Baby girl”

Me: “thobela papa? (Greetings father)
Dad: “agee nunu”

Me: “Papa can | please talk to Ora?”

Dad: “sorry nunu, she is not here. She
went with your mother to drop Sophy
home, she was not feeling well and your
mother left her phone”

Me: “What is wrong with Aunt Sophi?”

Dad: “she had a running stomach,
nothing hectic”

Me: “ok Pa, please call me back when
Ora comes back. | miss her”



My dad laughs “ohk Nunu | will do that”

We continue talking until Thalitha walks
in.

Me: “Pa, | have to get back to work now
bye. | love you”

Dad: “I love you too Nunu”

Me: “tjo, oredi gotsamaya already?”

Thali: “I am done with my work, we
might as well leave coz | know you did
not have much to do today”

Me: “ohk let me pack ge, founela
Tebogo”

Thali; “wo0000000, these flowers are
beautiful friend. What are they called?”



she says busy touching them.

Me: “Gardenia or something” | say
waiving my right hand.

Thali: “From Shaka Zulu?”

| nod and thalitha laughs and claps her
hands once. | finish packing up my
things and we make our way to
Tebogo’s office before heading off to
mall of the north.

| must say the movie was nice, | really
enjoyed myself. Taraji P Henson is such
a great actress. The movie really hit
home, | mean how many of us wouldn't
want to know what man want? How
many frogs must we really kiss before



finding our prince charming? | would
really want the ability to read man'’s
mind so that | can know someone’s real
intentions with me. Most woman go
through a lot of heartache and sleepless
night before they find their happily ever
after. That's if they are lucky ka gore not
everyone find everlasting happiness.

After the movie we decided to have
dinner at Panarottis | am a huge fan of
their pasta, especially the Chicken
Milano Fettuccine dish. We are busy
enjoying our dinner over a light
conversation and laughter when Thali
nudges me to look up. | do and | find the
waiter serving us standing there looking



at me with a bottle of wine.
Me: “Sorry, | did not order wine”

Waiter: “It's from that gentleman over
there” he says pointing at | guy that |
have never seen before sitting alone.

Me: “ooh sorry Tendai, just take it back”

| say after reading his name tag because
it means a lot when you acknowledge
someone who is serving you by their
name.

Tebogo: “Wahlanya bring it here” she
says taking the bottle from Tendai.

Tendai: “The gentleman said | should
leave the bottle and come back with
your numbers sesi” he says looking at
me. Kante how much tip did the guy



promise him?

Thalitha: “Well Tebogo since Rori
doesn’t drink and you decided to take
the bottle, give him your numbers
problem solved”

Tebogo: “Akena bothata nna plus o hot
abuti ola and he knows his wines, this is
a Beyerskloof pinotage” she says writing
ner cellphone number on a serviette and
Kissing it to leave a blue lip print of her
ip stick.

Me: “Tendai, just tell him they are mine
so that you can still get whatever big tip
he promised you”

He smiles shyly and takes the paper
from Tebogo and walks away. We bust



into laugher | mean today was just a
weird day. First it was Phumla and now
this guy. Hai mehlolo erata batho.

We continue to have our dinner with
these two drinking wine that was bought
with Tebogo's cellphone numbers. Its
09:30 when we decide to call it a night. |
called a cab, | know it's going to cost me
a lot but | would not be selfish to make
one of these two to drive me home and
drive back, especially since they had
been drinking. It's a good thing my
daughter and | are moving in to our
townhouse in town this weekend. At
least | know the cab driver, we went to
school together. Gape we live in



dangerous times where people use
business such as uber and taxify to
target unsuspecting ladies who travel
alone at night.

“So you decided to leave without saying
goodbye?” a sms from an unknown
number. “Who is this?” | reply. “Thendo,
the guy from Panarottis” and now where
did he get my numbers. Damn Tebogo,
she gave him my numbers instead of
hers, how could she? She know | was
not interested in him and yet she gave
him my numbers. Mxm. “it must be a
wrong number sir” | type. “ohk, Miss
wrong number with the profile pic of the
lady who enjoyed the wine have a great
evening, | will call you tomorrow” . | don't



know why | am entertained this guy, |
will just block him.

“Thanx oupa” | say giving him his fare.
“Xap Rori, odumedishe bra Sol neh” he
says looking at me via the review mirror.
“xo batla dumela” | say before closing
the door. Bra Sol is my father, he
coaches a community soccer team
that's why he is popular with the boys
around here. | walk into the house and
find everyone watching TV. | greet the
parents and pick my baby up for a hug. |
missed her so bad especially because
she was not happy with me in the
morning when | left.



Ora: “mommy ontletse le eng” | smile
and kiss her.

Me: “have you been a good girl”

Ora: “always mommy, | got 3 stars at
school today”

Me: “that's my girl, | got you something
for your lunch box tomorrow i want to
make up for the stale bread, now its late
say goodbye to mama and papa so we
can go sleep” | put her down and she
runs to my parents.

Ora: “Good night mama, good night
papa” she says while hugging and
Kissing them one by one.

Them: “Good night Princess”



We walk to the bedroom and get into
bed. Ora falls asleep while telling about
how her day was at school, my poor
child must have been tired. | am sure
she forced herself to stay up because
she did not want to sleep without seeing
me. | missed her too, that is why she is
sleeping with me today and not in her
bedroom. My phone vibrates indicating |
have a message. Another unknown
number, this one is different. “| hope you
enjoyed your movie. Next time ask me
to drive you home, cabs are not safe
anymore, Phumla®. Where does he get
my number? Is Tebogo on a mission of
publishing my numbers? She might as
well advertise then on the Bonus review




newspaper once. “Where did you get my
numbers?” | ask. “I have my ways" not
good enough. “l am blocking you now
bye” | say. “if you say so” Mxm, |
proceed to block him. Another sms
comes through “Good night Ma
Mokoena, | will see you tomorrow.
Uhlale uyazi ukuthi uyathandwa” what?
Didn’t | just block his **S? | don't know
why this makes me smile. | should be
pissed but | am not. His scent creeps
into my mind and | just close my eyes
and breath it all in and it was lights out
for me. | fall asleep thinking about
Phumla and his cologne.
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2 weeks later

Phumlani

| am woken up by my cellphone ringing, |
thought its best | ignored it but the
person on the other line seems to be
persistent. It's too early to be
entertaining calls. | slept late last night
developing a software for the Germans.
| was not even planning to go to work
early.

Me: “Hello” answer in a sleepy voice
without even checking the caller ID.

Caller: “Mhlehlo, vuka ndoda”



| haven't heard anyone call me by my
clan name in a longtime, if the call was
from anyone else | would be happy but
right now | am pissed. Pissed at Sy
because he is the only one who could
have given this dog my numbers. | open
my eyes and sit up.

Me: “Ufunani?”

Caller: "yindlela okhuluma ngayo
nabangani bakho le Mhlehlo?

Me: “uthe abangani Sbu? ungazo ngi
jwayela. Ngiyenzele | favor and lose my
number”

Sbu: laughing “Ungazo ziyenza | panty



wena, let bygones be bygones. You got
compensated with a lot of money for
that mistake we made so we need to
move on”

Me: “A mistake? You call robbing me 4
years of my life a mistake Sbu?”

Sbu: “Manzini, | would have apologized a
long time ago, but you did not want to
see me while you were inside. It's been
more than 4 years ndoda ngiyabawa
ungi qolele”

Me: “Sbu, ufunani kahle kahle, ngilele ngi
khathele”

Sbu: “Manzini, | am working on
something big, and | need your help”

Me: “Uya hlanya, hamba uyofa”



with that said | dropped the call and
switched off the phone. | am too worked
up to go back to sleep now and it's still
wee hours of the morning. | get up and
change to gym clothes. | need to take
out all this anger on a punching bag.
Thank God for the in house gym.

| expect to feel better after the intense
workout | just had but that not the case,
| am still pissed. | need to call Sy, he
needs to explain himself, and he better
have a good reason for giving that dog
my numbers.



Sy: “Manzini” he says answering the
phone

Me: “Wenzeni Sy?”

Sy: “Look uSbusiso told me that he
called you and you were not happy,
ngiya golisa”

Me: “What did you think would happen
nuh? | was going to be thrilled and throw
him a party and help with whatever favor
ne need. Is that what you thought would
nappen”

Sy: “Manzini, | am sorry but we really
need your help”

Madoda did he say “we”



Me: “what do you mean ‘we need help”
who is we?

Sy: “Manzini, please listen to what Sbu
have to say ngiyaku gela”

Me: “l told you | don’t want anything
engihlanganisa nemikhuba yenu emibi”

Sy: “just hear what he has to say and will
take it from there please”

Me: “Sy, thank you for everything you
have done for me but this is something |
can't help you with. Next time you call
me better not be related to anything ka
Sbu yezwa, have a nice day” | say before
hanging up, Mxm Sy can be a dumb
lawyer when he wants to.



| don't want to go to work, | will just work
from home today. | call Kwena to let him
know that | won't be coming in. Good
thing we have no meetings today. | take
a shower and get dressed in simple
clothes and | head to the kitchen to
blend a smoothie for breakfast.

***Bonus insert for the love you guys
are showing me o
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Rorisang

| am so frustrated right now. The taxis in
Seshego are on strike because they
don’t want the leeto bus project. Of all



days they could have chosen to strike, it
had to be today. | am on the verge of
tears right now because | have a very
important presentation at 10:00 for
board members and | can't afford not
going to work. It would have been better
if my dad was here because he would
drive me to work, but since its school
holidays they left with Ora to visit the
favorite uncle Thuso in Joburg. | could
have moved in to my town house by now
and | would not be having this issues
but the renovations were not yet done
and | had to wait for next month before
moving in. | am lost in my thoughts and
going crazy when my phone rings. Its
Phumla, we have been chatting and




communicating over the phone since
that night he managed to unblock
himself. We have been on a few dates
too but nothing is official yet.

Me: “Phumlani”
Him: “Morning ma Mokoena unjani”
Me: “Xap and you”

Him: “You don't sound xap, what is
wrong?”

| take a deep breath trying to hold in the
tears but | fail. | guess he can hear from
my sniffing that | am crying. | hear him
sigh.

Him: “baby talk to me, ungiphula intliziyo



mawukhala”

explain to him my transport
oredicament in between the sniffing. |
know you all think | am a cry baby but |
am not. | am frustrated because | have
ran out of all options and Alex would not
understand especially because of the
presentation that | need to do today.
Luckily Phumla says he will come and
fetch me.

In fact this is what he said to me “is that
why you are crying? Why didn't you just
call me to come and get you? Send me
your location ngise ndleleni baby unga



khali”.

After 20 minutes | receive a text from
Phumla saying he is outside. | grab my
pag and apple and run out. | see him
parked 2 houses away, leaning against
nis car. Did | tell you guys how yummy
Phumla is? | have never seen him
wearing shorts before, he has beautiful
legs papa!!l. | wonder why he is dressed
like that though, is he not going to work
today?. He is rocking grey track short,
back snickers and black v shaped t-shirt
that exposes his sexy toned body
structure with a gray cap.




| see few of my neighbors looking at him
and drooling. Eish, bo marata helele. He
walks towards me and smiles exposing
his perfect white teeth and dimples, ooh
Jesus take me now.

The closer he gets, the more | can smell
his hypnotic scent and thank God he
pulls me in for a hug and | close my eyes
and take in the smell. “hi” he says and
kisses me on my right chick. “hi” | say
blushing with a smile on my face. Thank
God | am not too light, | swear | would
have turned pink by now. He opens the
door to his blue BMW M5 and | slide in.
he moves to his side and gets in.



Phumlani: “Za kwami, uthi why ungangi
founelanga ngizoku landa?” he says as
he drives off

Me: “Bekele frustrated with my mind all
over the place”

Phumlani: “So you thought it's better to
cry?”

Me: “Be ke salle” | say looking out the
window.

Phumlani: “If you say so” he says
laughing

Me: “are you on leave” trying to change
the topic

Phumlani: “No, working from home”

Me: “Wow, your boss is an



understanding person neh”

Phumlani: “yep, very understanding” why
is his smiling like that vele.

He drives me to work while we hold a
light conversation. | must say Phumla is
very smart and | always learn a thing or
two from the conversations we have. He
is fun to hang around too.

Him: “What time must | fetch you?” he
says parking next to our gate, it's funny
that he is dropping me next to his work
place yet he is working from home. |
hope he did not lie to his boss that he is
sick or something.



Me: “I will call you after lunch to let you
know"

Him: “Ohk baby, enjoy your day. Uya
thandwa neh”

Me: “thanks for the ride” | say getting
out of the car | am not going to entertain
that ‘uya thandwa neh’ line. lam only 15
minutes late, it could have been worse
coz | almost didn't make it. At least my
oresentation is only at 10:00 meaning |
nave more than an hour to do final
Dreparations.

Its now 09:50 and board members start
making their way into the boardroom. |



am so nervous right now, at least Alex
went through my presentation first and
gave it a go ahead after recommending
few changes. He says | am ready to do
this but | am not sure really. Public
speaking was never my strongest point.
| see our CEO and few head of
departments making their way in and
sitting down. The laptop has already
been setup and all documents are
placed on the table next to each chair so
that the attendees can peruse. | am
busy talking to Alex when | notice a
familiar face. Noooo, what is he doing
here? Is the world really that small that
he had to be a board member in the
company that | work in? Now | am




nervous.
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Rorisang.

Alex: “You can do this Rori, remember |
believe in you. The team and | will be
nere to help with the Q&A ohk” Alex says
pefore taking his sit. | smile and nod. |
take my sit next to Alex and rub my
sweaty palms against my pants in an
attempt to wipe them. The chairperson
stands up and welcomes all of us. The
minutes from the previous meeting are
read and adapted and we start with the
agenda of the day. The first to present is
a representative from finance




department then communications and
lastly me. | must say | was nervous at
first but after few minutes | was just
flowing. It's a good thing that | was well
prepared. Few questions were asked
after the presentation and everyone was
satisfied with the answers that we
provided.

The board was so impressed that they
decided to increase our budget by 30%
more than what we were asking for. We
are done with presentations and having
lunch. He is sitting on the same table
with me, in fact he took a sit next to
mine while deserting his sit from a table
reserved for board members.



Him: “So we meet again, who would
nave though huh?” he says laughing

am not going to answer that, if he
thinks | feel bad for blocking him, otlaba
strong. | did not drink his wine, nor did |
ask for it.

Him: “Great presentation in there by the
way Rorisang you are going far” he says
after sometime.

Me: “Thank you Mr.?” | say with a smile.

Him: “Thendokhae Sioga, just call me
Thendo”

Me: “Thank you Thendo, what does your
name mean? Its Tshivenda neh”



Him: “It means praises to him, him being
God. My mother says she did not have
an easy pregnancy because of her blood
pressure and | was not meant to be
carried full term, so when she did and
gave birth to a healthy baby she felt she
it was all by God’'s grace and he
deserved all the praises”

Me: “Wow, | love Venda names, they all
have meanings. | had a friend in Varsity
called Onarene and she explained that
ner name means God is with us”

Him: “Don't worry, we will give all our
babies meaningful Venda names like
‘Akonaho, Mutshidzi......"




| laugh louder than | intended, aren’t we
getting ahead of ourselves.

Him: “No naka ni a divha? (You are
beautiful), | would give my all to hear
you laugh like that every day” he says
with a smirk on his face.

| just laugh, is this man really hitting on
me at a business lunch? | choose to
ignore his comment and carry on asking
him questions about Venda land. | have
never been to Venda but | hear it's a very
beautiful part of our province and the
people there are very warm and
welcoming. All | know about Venda is
that there are lots of fruits. Thendo is
surprised when | say | have never been
to Venda and he offers to take me on a



road trip this weekend. | wanted to say
no but he just did not take no for an
answer. | finally agreed to go with him
after much convincing from his side. |
am now very excited about the road trip
| can't wait.

| know | am the most cautious person
but | feel like | can trust Thendo, he is
soft spoken and very easy to get along.
Unfortunately he has to leaves
immediately after lunch coz he has a
court case to attend at 14:00.
Apparently he is not a board member in
our company he was attending today'’s
meeting on behalf of his brother who
couldn’t make it. He however owns a



law firm with offices in Polokwane and
Thohoyandou.

After lunch Alex informed me that | can
leave early and rest, he appreciates the
way | represented him and how hard |
worked on the presentation and
proposal for the board. As annoying as
he is, Alex does gives credit where it's
due. | will just have to call Phumla to
fetch me. He tells me that he will send a
driver to pick me up as he was still busy
with something. The driver will drop me
at his house and he will drive me home
as soon as heis done. | am just chilling
in my office when Tebogo walks in.

Tebogo: “I hear you killed them in there



girl, tsena kamo” she says raising her
hand for a high 5.

Me: “Ke a leboga, to be honest neke
tshugile xem”

Tebogo: “Nothing beats hard work girl. |
see you are ready to leave how are you
getting home coz di taxi tsa Seshego di
on strike?”

Me: “Phumlani offered to drive me
home”

Tebogo: “So are you guys official?”

Me: “No, we are just friend”

She chuckles | guess she thinks | am
messing with her.



Tebogo: “just be careful girl”

| don't even know why she doesn't like
Phumla. She made it clear that she is
not in support of our friendship since we
started hanging out. | once asked
Phumla if they have a history but he
assured me that he did not even know
her name until the day he had lunch with
us.

Tebogo: “Do you know how complicated
it is dating a Zulu man?”

What is with Tebogo vele?

Me: “l wouldn’t know, but | take it it's the
same as dating any other tribe”

Tebogo: She chuckles “How would you



know what other tribes behave like since
you only dated one guy and that ended
more than what? 6 years ago”

| look at her in disbelief. Why would she
throw that at my face, that something |
shared with them in confidence and now
she attacks me with that? | am lost for
words and | don't even know what to say
to her but | cannot hide the hurt on my
face.

Tebogo: “| am sorry that come out
wrong, all | mean is be careful Rori, this
could be your first relationship in a long
time and only a second in your life time.
Don't dive too deep and keep your
reservations and a little room for



disappointment. | am looking out for you
and that's my two cent sisterly advice”

Maybe she is right, | mean | have no
experience in relationships and | have
been off the game for too long.

Me: “l understand, thanks for looking out
for me, | promise to be careful and not
dive into anything too deep. At the
moment you don't have to worry we are
just friend”

She smiles and walks over to my side
for a hug

Tebogo: “I care about you Rori and
remember | am on your side always”



My phone rings and the call is from
reception telling me that the driver has
arrived. He must have been close by. |
pack up my backs and say my goodbyes
to Tebogo, lock the office and make my
way out. | find the driver by the reception
and he immediately leads me to the car
carrying my bags. He is such a nice man
almost the same age as my father. He
introduces himself as Bra Jed and tells
me that he has been driving for the IT
Company and since its inception 8 years
ago and he was a taxi driver before that.
| am shocked as to why would Phumla
send me a company driver and car,
would his boss be so understanding
with this whole thing? Hai aretsi.



We drive into Broadlands estate, houses
here are very expensive and this is one
of the most expensive estates in
Polokwane. Kante, how much money is
in IT vele, it's not like he owns the
company. To be honest | don't even
know Phumla’s job title in that company.
| look at the houses with admiration. |
can’t wait for the day | can afford to buy
a house like one of these ones here for
Ora and |. Knowing my daughter and her
love for finer things in life, she would be
so happy here.

Bra Jed: “Refihlile mam” he says pulling
up to a beautiful double story house.

Me: “Ke a leboga Pa” | say returning a



smile. Wow the sight before my eyes is
really beautiful, | find myself in front of a
very beautiful house. Bra Jed opens the
door for me and | see Phumla waiting at
the end of the drive way looking all
yummy. He is still wearing same clothes
but one can't overlook his sexiness.

05/04,15:22] :Insert12

Rorisang

Phumla: “Welcome to my humble abode,
nlease feel free here mi casa es su
casa’ he says after sharing a brief hug.

Me: “No need to be modest dude, there
is nothing humble about this house”

Phumla: “come on in, | hope you are not
in a hurry”



Me: “No, | am not, can | have a tour
please?”

Phumla: “Xo woza”

Phumla takes me on the house tour. |
must say he is living the dream shem.
The house is very beautiful with modern
design. It's very specious but what |
don't understand is why he would buy
such a big house living alone. | tried to
ask about his family, trying to
understand if he has any siblings and he
just changed the subject. | wonder what
is so painful about his past that he
doesn’t want to talk about. | don't blame
him though | did the same when he
asked me about Ora’s father. | don't like



talking about him or how he broke my
heart and left me with deep scares.

Phumla is very modest, when | asked
how he affords this place he just said he
is house sitting for a friend, but | know
he is lying because the house is too
much of him. We spend the rest of the
afternoon in his swimming pool and
braaing meat. In fact | was bullied into
swimming. It was either | change into
the shorts and vest that he borrowed me
or | was going to be thrown into the pool
with my formal wear. So changing into
his short willingly seemed like the best
option. Best decision ever.



| can confirm it for you guys, the rumors
you heard about Zulu man and their love
for meat is true. | have never eaten so
much meat in my life yoo, there was
beef, chicken and pork. You could swear
that we were braaing for many people
kante it was just the two of us. The good
thing is that | won't have to cook when |
get home since | am home alone.

Phumla “Thank you for spending your
afternoon with me za kwami, | really
enjoyed myself”

Me: “l enjoyed myself too, thank you for
coming to my rescue today. | don't know
what | would have done if you had not
been there”



We are sitting in his car, parked outside
my gate at 08:30 at night. It was not
easy leaving his house because he did
not want me to. | was also having fun
with him but a sleep over was out of the
question. We are having fun and
laughing when his phone rings. | don't
know what happened but after seeing
the caller id Phumla’s mood took a dive.
| refrained from asking who was calling
because it's really none of my business.

Phumla: “Ulale kahle yezwa" he says
before kissing my right cheek. | guess
that his way of saying he needs to go.



Me: “Good night Phumla”

He opens the door for me and pulls me
in for a tight hug. | know you guys are
tired of being reminded of how good he
smells but guys, this man smells like
heaven and | am obsessed with hi scent.
| pull out of the hug and make my way to
the house. | see him drive off as soon as
| walk inside the gate. | am very tired all |
need now is to call my daughter and go
to sleep.

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk

*%*

Phumlani



| was having a great time with my Pedi
queen until | received a call from Sbu
again. | told him countless times that |
want nothing to do with him. Ngapha Sy
is also begging me to hear him out. Sy is
blinded by his love for money. | really
don’t want anything to do with their
shenanigans. | made a vow to myself
not to find myself back in prison again
and | am not about to break it. Sbu is
right about one thing | made a lot of
money but | nearly lost it all. What was
the use of having all that money if | was
not able to spend it? Yes, | miss the
adrenalin and thrill of it all but | am
trying to better my life. Let me call it a
night, | really need to rest.




(The following day)

| woke up at 05:00 and did an hour on
the treadmill, few pushups and few laps
in the pool. Now my day can start. | took
a shower, got dressed and made my
way to the kitchen to blend a smoothie. |
took my car keys, cellphone wallet and
aptop and made my way out.

Her: “Ntate Zungu” she says answering
ner phone.

Me: “Za kwami do you need me to come
and collect you today?”

Rori: “No, thank you sir, taxis are back on
route”

Me: “you know | don't mind right, plus |



get to spend more time with you”

Rori: “I know you don’t mind Phumla, but
| am sorted thanks”

Me: “Ohk ge, join me for lunch, in my
office this time. | could do without your
two friends asking me 21 questions”

She laughs and agrees to have launch
with me in my office.

| could get used to this you know, seeing
my Pedi queen every day. | drive to the
office listing to the sound of Sjava. U
mama hits me hard because |
sometimes wonder how life would have
turned out if she was still alive and |
really miss home. | haven't stepped e



magcekeni ka Manzini in more than 4
years. | could have gone there after |
was released but my father told me long
time ago that | am dead to him and |
should consider myself an orphan. |
continue singing along to Sjava.

“Into eng'ythanda ngekhaya,

Ukuthi ekhaya ak'ngenwa ngemali
Noma ng'ngasebenzi

Umama ung'thanda ngenkani

Noma umhlaba ungang'shaya
Uzong'thulisa athi mtanami ungakhali

Ubukek' ukhathele awuthi ngiland'
ukudla baba hlalaphansi



Ang'sakhoni, ang'sakhoni, ang'sakhoni
Ngikhumbul uma

Sebeth' indoda endala kangaka
Ikhalel' umawayo

Tha bafwethu ngeke ni-understand

Ndoda endala kangaka ikhalela
umawayo

Tha bafwethi ngeke ni-understande”

| am very emotional right now thinking
about my mother. | just need to bury
myself in work and not think too much. |
walk to the office and great Sindy at her
desk.



Me: “Sindy, can | please not be disturbed
today. The only person | am willing to

see is Kwena and only if its important
ohk”

Sindy: “Noted Sir, but what about your
meeting with Miss Nagel at 12:00?”

Me: “Don’t worry about it, | will ask
Kwena to take over”

Sindy: “Ohk Sir, noted”

| make my way to my office and burry
until | am disturbed by Kwena after his
meeting with Nagel to give me feedback.

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk



Rorisang

It is now 12:55 and | decide to pack up
my stuff a make my way to Phumla’s
office across the street. It's my first time
here and | don’t even know which floor
his office is at.

Me: “hi, | am here to see Mr Zungu” | say
to the security that | meet at ground
floor.

Him: “Do you have an appointment
mam” he says smiling back, | guess | did
sound like | was here for work related
reasons.

Me: “No, but he is expecting me” he



hands me a visitor's book to sign and
tells me to take a lift to 4th floor.

Few minutes later | arrive at 4th floor
and | find receptionist. | walk over to her
with a smile and she is more serious
than the guy down stairs.

Me: “hi, | am here to see Mr Zungu” | say
with my brightest smile

Her: “Yoo hai Thulani doesn't listen, |
told him that Mr Zungu will not be
seeing anyone today, can you please
come back on Tuesday mam, coz he is
fully booked on Monday”

| guess Thulani is the guy | meet down
stairs. “He is expecting me” | say still



Keeping on my smile.

Her: “unfortunately mam, he asked to
nave all his appointment for today
cancelled, if it's an urgent matter | can
check with Mr Lekota's PA if they can be
able to assist you for today”

Yooo haai what is with all this gate
keeping? How difficult is it really to see
an IT specialist? Luckily he walks out of
the office with another guy, | assume it's
the boss. | have always seen him around
but we haven't been formally introduced.
The lady at reception and | both turn our
attention to them as they walk out
laughing. Phumla sees me and smiles,
he walks towards the desk and pulls me



in for a tight hug that last longer than it
should and he is not even apologetic
about it.

His boss is standing there grinning
broadly and the PA was just standing
there. | close my eyes and take in his
scent, as this has become my new
hobby. | pull out of the hug and he
kisses my forehead and smile.

Phumla: “You really took your time Ma
Mokoena" he said, | look at the PA and
she looks down embarrassed.

Me: “l am sorry Zungu, you and | both
know how difficult bosses can be, so it



was not easy to leave the office before
handing over a report”

He takes my hand and leads me to his
office, funny enough his boss also
follows us. | guess he is one of those
neople who don't need an invitation.

Phumla: “Za kwami. Please meet my
hoss, Kwena Lekota”

Me: “Nice to meet you Mr Lekota” | say
as | extend my arm for a hand shake.
What does he do? He pulls me in for a
brief hug.

Kwena: “Please don't call me Mr Lekota,
you make me sound so old. I just turned
21 you know. Just call me Kwena, that's



what everyone called me anyway. Mr
Lekota was my father and his father and
great grandfathers who did not even
leave me any piece of land. If it was not
this things tsa badimo wa bona | was
going to change my surname nxu struu.
| would go by Kwena Kwena. Phela
Kwena ke phoofolo e kotse kudu ore
why Lacoste e tura so?”

Hooow bakithi, this man. | am laughing
so hard that my stomach hurt. Phumla’s
boss is something else.

Phumla: “Enjoy your lunch Kwena | will
catch up with you after 2 ohk” he says



oulling him to the door

Kwena: “It was nice meeting you
Rorisang, | hope next time we meet it
will be for more than 2 seconds” he says
being pulled to the door.

Me: “It was nice meeting you too
Kwena” | shout

Me: “What a character” | say shaking my
head and laughing as soon as Phumla
closes the door.

Phumla: “Imagine, | have to work with
him every day” we both bust into laugher.

Me: “Yoo hai he made my entire week, |
guess working with him is like having a
standup comedian on a speed dial away.



When you are stressed by deadlines, you
just dial him and you are guarantee to
augh” | say continuing to laugh.

Phumla: “Don’t make fun of my boss, lo
muntu o badala ama bills wami” he says
laughing.

| wouldn’t mind working with a clown
like him, too bad | am stuck with bo Mr.
serious Alex Smith. We set up our lunch
at a corner table in his office and eat
while discussing current affairs. The
main topic being Mampitsa and Babes
wodumo. | mean we are all shocked by
the turn of events as Mampitsa also lays
charges of assault against Babes.



| really appreciate the stand that Phumla
is taking on this topic. It warms my heart
to know that he doesn't believe in hitting
a woman no matter what the reason
could be to do so. No woman deserves
to be beaten up by a man, worse of all a
man who is supposed to be her
protector and pillar of strength.

Phumla invited me for movies on
Saturday but | had to turn him down
because of my trip with Thendo to
Venda. His face when | corrected him
that Thendo is not a lady but a man, yoo
aretse

[05/04,15:23] :Insert 12



Rorisang

Phumla: “Welcome to my humble abode,
nlease feel free here mi casa es su
casa’ he says after sharing a brief hug.

Me: “No need to be modest dude, there
is nothing humble about this house”

Phumla: “come on in, | hope you are not
in a hurry”

Me: “No, | am not, can | have a tour
please?”

Phumla: “Xo woza”

Phumla takes me on the house tour. |
must say he is living the dream shem.
The house is very beautiful with modern



design. It's very specious but what |
don’t understand is why he would buy
such a big house living alone. | tried to
ask about his family, trying to
understand if he has any siblings and he
just changed the subject. | wonder what
is so painful about his past that he
doesn't want to talk about. | don't blame
him though | did the same when he
asked me about Ora’s father. | don't like
talking about him or how he broke my
heart and left me with deep scares.

Phumla is very modest, when | asked
how he affords this place he just said he
is house sitting for a friend, but | know
he is lying because the house is too



much of him. We spend the rest of the
afternoon in his swimming pool and
braaing meat. In fact | was bullied into
swimming. It was either | change into
the shorts and vest that he borrowed me
or | was going to be thrown into the pool
with my formal wear. So changing into
his short willingly seemed like the best
option. Best decision ever.

| can confirm it for you guys, the rumors
you heard about Zulu man and their love
for meat is true. | have never eaten so
much meat in my life yoo, there was
beef, chicken and pork. You could swear
that we were braaing for many people
kante it was just the two of us. The good




thing is that | won't have to cook when |
get home since | am home alone.

Phumla “Thank you for spending your
afternoon with me za kwami, | really
enjoyed myself”

Me: “I enjoyed myself too, thank you for
coming to my rescue today. | dont know
what | would have done if you had not
been there”

We are sitting in his car, parked outside
my gate at 08:30 at night. It was not
easy leaving his house because he did
not want me to. | was also having fun
with him but a sleep over was out of the



question. We are having fun and
laughing when his phone rings. | don't
know what happened but after seeing
the caller id Phumla’s mood took a dive.
| refrained from asking who was calling
because it's really none of my business.

Phumla: “Ulale kahle yezwa" he says
before kissing my right cheek. | guess
that his way of saying he needs to go.

Me: “Good night Phumla”

He opens the door for me and pulls me
in for a tight hug. | know you guys are
tired of being reminded of how good he
smells but guys, this man smells like
heaven and | am obsessed with hi scent.



| pull out of the hug and make my way to
the house. | see him drive off as soon as
| walk inside the gate. | am very tired all |
need now is to call my daughter and go
to sleep.

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk

*%*

Phumlani

| was having a great time with my Pedi
queen until | received a call from Sbu
again. | told him countless times that |
want nothing to do with him. Ngapha Sy
is also begging me to hear him out. Sy is
blinded by his love for money. | really



don’t want anything to do with their
shenanigans. | made a vow to myself
not to find myself back in prison again
and | am not about to break it. Sbu is
right about one thing | made a lot of
money but | nearly lost it all. What was
the use of having all that money if | was
not able to spend it? Yes, | miss the
adrenalin and thrill of it all but | am
trying to better my life. Let me call it a
night, | really need to rest.

(The following day)

| woke up at 05:00 and did an hour on
the treadmill, few pushups and few laps
in the pool. Now my day can start. | took
a shower, got dressed and made my



way to the kitchen to blend a smoothie. |
took my car keys, cellphone wallet and
aptop and made my way out.

Her: “Ntate Zungu” she says answering
ner phone.

Me: “Za kwami do you need me to come
and collect you today?”

Rori: “No, thank you sir, taxis are back on
route”

Me: “you know | don't mind right, plus |
get to spend more time with you”

Rori: “I know you don’t mind Phumla, but
| am sorted thanks”

Me: “Ohk ge, join me for lunch, in my
office this time. | could do without your
two friends asking me 21 questions”



She laughs and agrees to have launch
with me in my office.

| could get used to this you know, seeing
my Pedi queen every day. | drive to the
office listing to the sound of Sjava. U
mama hits me hard because |
sometimes wonder how life would have
turned out if she was still alive and |
really miss home. | haven't stepped e
magcekeni ka Manzini in more than 4
years. | could have gone there after |
was released but my father told me long
time ago that | am dead to him and |
should consider myself an orphan. |
continue singing along to Sjava.




“Into eng'ythanda ngekhaya,

Ukuthi ekhaya ak'ngenwa ngemali
Noma ng'ngasebenzi

Umama ung'thanda ngenkani

Noma umhlaba ungang'shaya
Uzong'thulisa athi mtanami ungakhali

Ubukek' ukhathele awuthi ngiland'
ukudla baba hlalaphansi

Ang'sakhoni, ang'sakhoni, ang'sakhoni
Ngikhumbul' uma

Sebeth' indoda endala kangaka
lkhalel' umawayo

Tha bafwethu ngeke ni-understand

Ndoda endala kangaka ikhalela



umawayo

Tha bafwethi hgeke ni-understande”

| am very emotional right now thinking
about my mother. | just need to bury
myself in work and not think too much. |
walk to the office and great Sindy at her
desk.

Me: “Sindy, can | please not be disturbed
today. The only person | am willing to
see is Kwena and only if its important
ohk”

Sindy: “Noted Sir, but what about your
meeting with Miss Nagel at 12:00?”



Me: “Don’t worry about it, | will ask
Kwena to take over”

Sindy: “Ohk Sir, noted”

| make my way to my office and burry
until | am disturbed by Kwena after his
meeting with Nagel to give me feedback.

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk

Rorisang

It is now 12:55 and | decide to pack up
my stuff a make my way to Phumla’s
office across the street. It's my first time
here and | don’t even know which floor



his office is at.

Me: “hi, | am here to see Mr Zungu” | say
to the security that | meet at ground
floor.

Him: “Do you have an appointment
mam” he says smiling back, | guess | did
sound like | was here for work related
reasons.

Me: “No, but he is expecting me” he
hands me a visitor’'s book to sign and
tells me to take a lift to 4th floor.

Few minutes later | arrive at 4th floor
and | find receptionist. | walk over to her
with a smile and she is more serious
than the guy down stairs.



Me: “hi, | am here to see Mr Zungu” | say
with my brightest smile

Her: “Yoo hai Thulani doesn't listen, |
told him that Mr Zungu will not be
seeing anyone today, can you please
come back on Tuesday mam, coz he is
fully booked on Monday”

| guess Thulani is the guy | meet down
stairs. “He is expecting me” | say still
Keeping on my smile.

Her: “unfortunately mam, he asked to
nave all his appointment for today
cancelled, if it's an urgent matter | can
check with Mr Lekota's PA if they can be
able to assist you for today”




Yooo haai what is with all this gate
keeping? How difficult is it really to see
an IT specialist? Luckily he walks out of
the office with another guy, | assume it's
the boss. | have always seen him around
but we haven't been formally introduced.
The lady at reception and | both turn our
attention to them as they walk out
laughing. Phumla sees me and smiles,
he walks towards the desk and pulls me
in for a tight hug that last longer than it
should and he is not even apologetic
about it.

His boss is standing there grinning
broadly and the PA was just standing



there. | close my eyes and take in his
scent, as this has become my new
hobby. | pull out of the hug and he
kisses my forehead and smile.

Phumla: “You really took your time Ma
Mokoena” he said, | look at the PA and
she looks down embarrassed.

Me: “I am sorry Zungu, you and | both
know how difficult bosses can be, so it
was not easy to leave the office before
handing over a report”

He takes my hand and leads me to his
office, funny enough his boss also
follows us. | guess he is one of those



neople who don't need an invitation.

Phumla: “Za kwami. Please meet my
noss, Kwena Lekota”

Me: “Nice to meet you Mr Lekota” | say
as | extend my arm for a hand shake.
What does he do? He pulls me in for a
brief hug.

Kwena: “Please don't call me Mr Lekota,
you make me sound so old. I just turned
21 you know. Just call me Kwena, that's
what everyone called me anyway. Mr
Lekota was my father and his father and
great grandfathers who did not even
leave me any piece of land. If it was not
this things tsa badimo wa bona | was
going to change my surname nxu struu.
| would go by Kwena Kwena. Phela



Kwena ke phoofolo e kotse kudu ore
why Lacoste e tura so?”

Hooow bakithi, this man. | am laughing
so hard that my stomach hurt. Phumla’s
boss is something else.

Phumla: “Enjoy your lunch Kwena | will
catch up with you after 2 ohk” he says
oulling him to the door

Kwena: “It was nice meeting you
Rorisang, | hope next time we meet it
will be for more than 2 seconds” he says
being pulled to the door.

Me: “It was nice meeting you too
Kwena” | shout



Me: “What a character” | say shaking my
head and laughing as soon as Phumla
closes the door.

Phumla: “Imagine, | have to work with
him every day” we both bust into laugher.

Me: “Yoo hai he made my entire week, |
guess working with him is like having a
standup comedian on a speed dial away.
When you are stressed by deadlines, you
just dial him and you are guarantee to
laugh” | say continuing to laugh.

Phumla: “Don't make fun of my boss, lo
muntu o badala ama bills wami” he says
laughing.



| wouldn’t mind working with a clown
like him, too bad | am stuck with bo Mr.
serious Alex Smith. We set up our lunch
at a corner table in his office and eat
while discussing current affairs. The
main topic being Mampitsa and Babes
wodumo. | mean we are all shocked by
the turn of events as Mampitsa also lays
charges of assault against Babes.

| really appreciate the stand that Phumla
is taking on this topic. It warms my heart
to know that he doesn't believe in hitting
a woman no matter what the reason
could be to do so. No woman deserves
to be beaten up by a man, worse of all a
man who is supposed to be her
protector and pillar of strength.



Phumla invited me for movies on
Saturday but | had to turn him down
because of my trip with Thendo to
Venda. His face when | corrected him
that Thendo is not a lady but a man, yoo
aretse

[05/04, 15:24] :Insert 13

Rorisang

Today is Saturday and | woke up early
because | need to prepare for my trip to
Venda with Thendo. | am not really sure
about this trip | don't even know what
was | thinking agreeing to go to a place |



don’t know with a man | barely know. My
heart is no longer on the road trip and |
couldn’t bring myself to let Thendo
down especially on the eleventh hour.
It's now 08:15 and | am supposed to
meet Thendo in town at 09:00. | know
time is against me because | have not
yet had breakfast. | spend most of my
mornings talking to Ora whom | miss
very much. | wish they were coming
back tomorrow but they still have
another week to spend in Johannesburg.
| am busy dishing jungle oats when a
message comes through on the phone.
‘ am outside’ the text reads. What does
he mean he is outside? | am not
expecting him, plus he knows | have a



trip to Venda today. | cover the oats
that's | have dished with a table cloth
and walk to the gate.

| see him leaning against his car. He is
wearing long track pants, running shoes
and a sweater. | take it he went jogging
and decided to pass by my place. His
face is hard and all serious. This is a
sight of Phumla that | am not familiar
with. | have only seen him laughing and
having a playful look, this hard and
serious look is all foreign to me.




Me: “Morning, | was not expecting to see
you today” | say smiling and standing
next to him.

Phumlani: “Morning, are you ready to
leave?” he says with a serious tone

Me: “Ready to leave for where?”

Phumlani: “Une skhathi soku dlala neh.
Uthe uyaphi today?” | look at him
puzzled what is he playing at. | know |
told him | am going to Venda but where



is he going?

Me: “Hayi Phumla, | know | said | am
going to Venda but you are not going
with us” | say folding my arm in front of
my chest. What is he playing at?

He chuckles and look at me like | am
crazy.

Phumla: “I| have no plans to go to Venda
mina, get in the car sihambe”

Me: “Let me go lock the house first ge”



| left him standing there and went back
to the house. | took my handbag,
cellphone and house keys. | made my
way to the car after locking both the
house and the gate. | got in the
passenger seat and he drove off without
saying a word. | don't know what he is
thinking right now. We are driving in
total silent. No words, no music just the
sounds of our silent thought. | play a
game on my phone just to escape from
all this tension. After a while | see him
drive into his estate. | was not even
paying attention of the directions we
were driving in. | guess | was just naive
to think that he would drop me off at the
Mall so that | could wait for Thendo.



Thendo sent me an SMS saying | should
let him know as soon as | get to town.
The agreement was to meet at KFC
behind Limpopo Mall by Landross Mare
Street. Phumla pulls off at his drive way
and gets out of the car. | follow without
waiting for him to open the door for me.

Me: “Will you please drop me off in
town” | say as soon as we walk in the
house.

Phumla: “What do you know about this
guy other than his first name and
surname?”



Me: “not much really”

Phumla: “So why do you want to go with
a total stranger? Do you need attention
that much?”

| kept quite coz | felt like he was
insulting me, what does he mean do |
need that much attention. He leaves me
standing in the middle of the room and
went upstairs. | sent Thendo an SMS
telling him that | can't make it anymore. |
make up some story about an
emergency at home. He calls
immediately and | don't feel like



answering. In fact | am ashamed, | don't
know what | will say to him. He sent as
SMS saying he hopes the emergency |
nave at home gets resolved. | am sitting
nere alone and | don't know where
Phumla is, | am both hungry and angry.
After half an hour of him not showing up
made my way to the Kitchen and
prepared a sandwich for myself. | don't
Kknow what is eating Phumla yazi and
what he did is totally wrong. He
kidnapped me, insulted me by saying |
seek attention and now he disappeared
somewhere in the house.

Phumlani: “Ngiyeza” that's all he say
answering his phone before hanging up.



have been sitting in here alone for an
nour before deciding to call him. | do not
nave the energy to search for him in the
nouse. He comes down wearing a blue
short jean, white golf t-shirt and white
shickers.

Me: “Phimlani nthwe we idirago is not
fair” | say as soon as | see him coming
down the stairs.

Him: “Tell me do you really want to go to
Venda or you want to go to Venda with
this a stranger?”



| keep quite coz | don’t even know what
was | thinking agreeing to go to Venda

with Thendo. What if he kidnapped me

or something?

Him: “Let’s go” he says grabbing his car
keys.

Me: “Reya kae?”

Hime: “Uzo bona”

| pick up my bag and phone and follow
him to the car.



kkkkkkkkkkkk

Phumla is very spontaneous, | can't
believe we are driving to Venda right
now. When | realized where we are
heading to | was happy and shocked at
the same time coz he did not have to do
it. All he said was “You want to go to
Venda, | will take you Venda. | am here
for you Rori, use me. You want
something ask me and | will move
mountains if | have to so that you can
get whatever it is that you want”. Guys |
think this man just stole my heart. | am



falling for Phumla and | pray to God that
this Zulu man will catch me and carry
me home. Home to his heart, a place
where | will be treasured and loved.

Phumla is also adventurous. Making me
try things | wouldn't even dare dream of
doing. For example as we were going
through the Hendrik Verwoerd Tunnels,
he parked the car before going through
the first tunnel and made us walk into
the tunnels. Thank God for the walk path
made for pedestrians we walk to the
other side of the tunnel before walking
back for the car. We stopped in the
middle of the tunnel on our way back to
the car and he just pulled me in for a



nassionate kiss that left my knees weak.
t was a perfect moment and | am glad
ne is here with me right now. We went
pack for the car and drove through the
tunnel joining other drivers in hooting
while driving through. | don’t know why
drivers hoot when the drive through the
tunnels but it was fun to experience the
whole thing. Our first stop was Phiphidi
waterfall, breath taking that's all | can
say. We took so many pictures, poor
Phumla got tired of making poses he
ended up being a cameraman.

We left Phiphidi and drove to the Royal
Gardens for lunch. Venda is so beautiful
xem. The place is green and majestic



with its hills and valleys. | have never
seen so much green in one place. There
were fruit trees everywhere, inside and
outside people’s yards. After lunch we
went for a boat ride at to Nandoni Dam, |
can safely say | am ready to get to know
my province coz today | learned we have
so much to explore without leaving the
boarders of our province. We were both
very tired after the whole experience and
Phumla booked us a room at Khoroni.

We had to drive to Thavhane mall to buy
toiletries and change of clothes for
tomorrow.



Phumlani: “Rori ngiya ku thanda, you
may not know it yet but | need you in my
life. If you remember what | wrote on the
card that | sent with the first flowers
that | sent to you, you would remember
that | said | don't like wasting my time
on meaningless things. | have wasted
few years of my life doing nothing and
right now all | want to do is to spend
every minute doing meaningful things
and spending time with people who
means a lot to me. | want you baby
please let me in, | promise to live for you
and guard your heart. | will never hurt
you intentionally and yes | have a past
and somethings | have done in that past
you might not like. But all | need you to



know is | am no longer that person”

We having this conversation while
naving dinner in the hotel room. We
pooked two separate bedrooms and
naving dinner in my room.

Me: “l want to be with you in my life too
Phumla, but | also need you to open up
to me about your past. | feel like | don't
know you. | don't even know if you have
any siblings or not because you always
change the subject whenever | ask
about your family. | am willing to make
us work but | need you to be an open
book with me for example | dont know



what you were doing or staying before
moving to Polokwane”

Phumla: “l was in prison”

Me: “huh?” | don't think | heard him right.

Phumla: “I said | was in jail before
moving to Polokwane”

Me: “Ke kgopela go bethwa ke moya” |
said standing up

Phumla: “Uyaphi, it's not safe out there”
he shouts as | open the door and step



out of the room. He better not follow me.

[05/04, 15:24] :Insert 14

Phumlani

| am going out of my wits here, worried
about Rorisang. | know she deserved to
know the truth but now I feel like it was
too soon. | wish she did not run off, she
should have atleast kicked me out of her
room because now | am worried about
ner. What if something happened to her,
can't even call her since she left her
phone behind. | went to the casino, the
restaurant and reception area to look for
her with no success.




| am now sitting here drinking my
second glass of whisky. | have always
known that my past will come back to
trouble me but | did not know it would
be this soon. | doubt | am even prepared
to let her go, | love her. She stole my
heart the minute | laid my eyes on her.

My body is tired but my mind and heart
would not allow me to sleep. It's been 2
hours already and she is still not back. |
could have chased after her but |
thought she needed to digest what | just
shared with her. | am brought back by a
soft knock on the door. | take a deep
breath and make a smaller nyana prayer




thank God. | open the door and find my
Pedi queen on the other side.

Her: “l am sorry | ran out earlier | just
needed to digest what you told me” she
says as soon as she walks in.

| am glad that she is back safe and
unharmed i am not even going to ask
where she was. | am very nervous right
now. | don’t know what to expect. My
biggest fear is losing her before we even
get to be together.

Me: sight “So sime kuphi?”



Rori: “I thought about what is it that |
want and need. | asked myself if | can
overlook your past and the fact that you
did sometime in prison. | thought about
my child, what would be best for her...”

All this time, | hear all that she is saying
and | guess she is not comfortable with
her child being around a former convict.

Rori: “Like you said Phumla, this is your
past and we all have a past. For some
it's darker but that shouldn't matter.
What matters is who you are now. If we
give up on everyone who goes to jail



there won't be a need for our justice
system to try and have then reformed. |
only have one question though actually
make that 2"

Me: “Ohk, buza”

Rori: “What were you in for and how long
was the sentence?”

If this was any other moment believe me,
| would joke and say murder but | guess
this is not one of those times. | am not
yet out of the woods, but | pray that in
the near future she and | can be able to
joke about it.



Me: “I was sentenced for hacking into a
bank system and my sentence was for

25 years but only served four when my

verdict was reversed due to some new

evidence that strengthened my case”

Rori: “So you were not the one who
hacked into the bank system?”

Me: “Not on that particular day in
question, no” | am planning to be as
open as | possibly can be with her.

Rori: “| am lost”



Me: sighing “l was working for an IT
company where | was employed to hack
into other company systems to
diagnose their weakness. After we
diagnosed their weaknesses we would
develop a system for those companies
to protect them from hackers. So
hacking into systems is my specialty. So
when my mother was diagnosed with
cervical cancer, my 4 friends and | came
with a plan use my skills to get funds for
her medical treatment. | was desperate
at the time because my mother was not
on any medical aid and adding her on
mine at that time was not an option
because her sickness was not going to




be covered for the next twelve months
because of waiting periods. So | used
my hacking skills to hack into banks, a
friend of mine who is an accountant
used his skills to wash the money using
our other friend's businesses. It all
worked and | was able to pay my
mother's medical bills until she passed
away 2 years later”

Rori: “So did you stop after your
mother’'s passing”

Me: “No, we didn't. We continued to
hack and steal money. | guess we were
just used to it and the money also



motivated us”

Rori: “So how did you get caught?”

Me: “A friend of mine who is the
accountant became greedy because he
had to feed a lifestyle of drugs, fast cars
and slay queens. So he took my laptop
when | was not home and used the
system to hack into a bank without
shielding the IP address so that when
it's traced it will lead the tracer to 10
different locations which doesn't include
the actual address. So when it was
traced it lead the investigators to my
door step and the nature of my job did



not do me favor because it's
demonstrated my ability to hack into
systems”

Rori: “So what evidence exonerated
you?”

Me: “I never plead guilty in court coz |
wasn't and no funds stolen were found
in any of my bank accounts and
investments. But the biggest thing that
played a role was a throwback Thursday
video that was posted by a couple of the
day the man proposed to his girlfriend at
the beach”



Rori: “How?”

Me: “In the Video, | could be seen
walking with my then girlfriend at the
beach at the time and day | was
supposedly hacking into the bank. It was
actually spotted my friend Simon who is
a lawyer on Facebook and he forced the
state to reopen the case. With the new
evidence | was vindicated and released”

Rori: “Yoo0, it sounds like a movie”

Me: “Well it's a story of my life”



Rori: “So why didn't you turn in your
friend, the one who used your laptop to
hack the system”

Me: “It's all about loyalty and a code that
we had. If one gets caught they go down
alone. Those who are outside would
then be responsible for his business
interest and taking care of his family”

Rori: “Can you still hack into systems
and do you still do it?”

Me: “l can hack into any system but |
don’t do it. | used my funds to buy into
the IT Company that was on the verge of



closing down and decided to move to
Polokwane to start afresh and run my
business legally”

Rori: “So you own the company, you are
not just an employee?”

Me: “Yes | own the company, actually
Kwena and | own 50% each’

Rori: "Would you ever hack into my
laptop or phone?”

Me: "not unless you are in danger, i
respect your privacy and i mean it"



Rori: “Ohk, | am glad you were not
charged for murder or rape or human
trafficking. | am not sure if | would have
been able to look past those. | have a
child that | need to think about in every
decision | make” she says yarning. We
are both tired and its now midnight.

Me: “You are tired za kwami, let’s call it
a night and we can continue this
conversation tomorrow” | say standing

up.

Rori: “could you please cuddle me until |
fall asleep”



It made me really happy to hear her ask
me that question. | kicked off my shoes
and took of my clothes until | was left
with a vest and boxer shorts. She went
to the bathroom to change into her night
gown.

Me: “I will leave as soon as you fall
asleep ok. Sweet dreams my Pedi
queen” | say kissing the top of her head.

Rori: she giggles “Good night my Zulu
king”



My heart jumped for joy hearing her say
that. The trip to Venda finally yields
some positive results. The only thing
unbearable about this place is the heat,
we had to sleep on top of the blanket
with an air con on.

[05/04, 15:24] :Insert 15

Rorisang

Its Friday today, 5 days since our trip to
Venda where Phumla and | made our
relationship official. The week has been
hectic for both of us making it difficult
to spend more time together. | had a
deadline to produce a proposal by



Thursday and Phumla has been training
lecturers at Capricorn College on the
software that his company developed
for them from Monday. The only time
we would see each other was in the
morning when he would collect me from
home. So to make up for not seeing
much of each other | am spending the
night at his house today and tomorrow
since both my parents and daughter are
coming back on Sunday.

| am busy on my laptop when Thalitha
walks into my office holding a bunch of
red roses.



Thalitha: “Girl aren't you just lucky? |
have been with my motho for 4 years
now, not even once did | receive flowers”
she says handing me the roses.

Me: Smiling “Arg maybe your motho
know that you would appreciate other
things better than flowers”

Thalitha: “You are right hey, what would |
do with flowers mara? | prefer bo ma
airtime, bo di data or dijo so or a
shopping spree nyana” we both laugh
about it.

Thalitha was very happy to hear that



Phumla and | are now an item, pity |
can't say the say about Tebogo. Thalitha
said | must just do me and forget about
her, and that’s just what | have decided
to do.

Thalitha: “So did you find a helper?”

Me: “No, | did not find a helper, | found a
house executive” | said laughing.

Thalitha: “Is that what they are called
now? House executives?”

Me: “That’s what | choose to call them”



Thalitha: “Yoo nna if ompha such a nice
tittle you better be giving me nice money
too” she says laughing.

Ora and | are finally moving into our own
space next weekend. The renovations
are done and | collected my keys
yesterday. | still need to buy furniture
and find transport for Ora to school.

Thalitha: “Enjoy your weekend boo, | will
see you on Monday neh”

Me: “Enjoy your weekend too and drive



safe. Stop being a Schumacher on the
road”

Thalitha: “Yes Mother” she says rolling
her eyes before living my office.

| call Phumla to find out if he is back coz
| am ready to leave. He tells me to come
to his office he is just finishing off
something. | pack my things and make
my way out after locking my office.
Thank God he took my overnight back in
the morning when he collected me |
wouldn’t want people knowing that keya
malunda (sleeping out). | meet my
supervisor at the parking lot reversing.



Him: “Do you need a lift Rori?” he says
rolling down his window

Me: “no thank you Alex, | am just going
across the street”

Him: “ohk, but just so you know | don't
like that friend of yours from across the
street”

Me: | chuckle “just so you know he is not
my friend but my boyfriend and he
doesn't like you either Alex”.



He shakes his head and roll his window
back up and drives off. Mxm this one
must just get over himself and bring
back our land.

| cross over and walk to Phumla’s office
building. | choose to wait for him down
stairs. | will just text and let him know
that | am here. He soon makes his way
out of the lift followed by his sidekick,
Kwena. He is looking all hot in his gray 3
piece suite, white shirt and brown shoes.
am hypnotized by his scent as he
walks closer towards me. He opens his
arms and pulls me in for a hug. As usual
| close my eyes and take in his scent.
Kwena clears his throat in protest and |




pull out of the hug and hug him too.

Kwena: “Hi, Rori, | am told you don't
want to come upstairs so | decided to
come down, hard luck if you were trying
to avoiding me”

What? Kwena can be dramatic shame

Phumla: “Wow Kwena, just wow" he
says shaking his head.

Kwena: “Bekesa bolele le wena morwa”

| laugh, this two neh. | wonder how they



manage to work together. Phumla is Mr.
serious and Kwena is Mr. funny clown.

Me: “I was not trying to avoid you Kwena,
in fact | missed you”

Phumla: “No za kwami you did not miss
him, don't lie to make him feel better”

Kwena: laughing “I missed you two Rori,
et me not keep you love birds then,
please don't be a stranger ohk”

Me: “I promise | won't”



Kwena winks at me and walk back to the
lift singing ‘I am so happy’ by Pharrell.

Phumla and | just look at him in
amusement before he takes my hand in
his and looks deep into my eyes.

Phumla: “I missed you and your soft lips
paby” he says pulling me in for a brief
KISS.

k*kkkkkkk

Phumla




































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































